
 CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705  MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

OCTOBER 7, 2013 

6:30 P.M. 
                                                                              

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION    Reverend  Jerry Bousard / Daphne Baptist Church  

 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / September 16, 2013     

                                                   Special Called Council meeting minutes / September 23, 2013 

                                                   Council Strategic Plan meeting minutes / September 23, 2013   

         
PROCLAMATION:   Fire Prevention Week / October 7-13, 2013 

 

PRESENTATION:     By Daphne Elementary School   /  To the Dan Castrillo Family 

 

PROCLAMATION:   Breast Cancer Awareness Month 

 

PRESENTATION:     Winner of Daphne Firefighters Breast Cancer Awareness T-Shirt Design Contest  from  

                                       Daphne High School     

 

                                                   

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Conaway  

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE-  Davis    

   C.      PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell    

   D.      CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  - Fry  

   E.      PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune     

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones   

         2014 Meeting and Submittal Calendar 

 

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis 

   D.  Library Board  - Lake 

   E.  Planning Commission – Scott   

         a.)  Review Planning Commission minutes / August 29
th
  

         b.)  2014 Meeting and Submittal Calendar 

         c.)  Review Sign Committee minutes/ September 3
rd

, September 10
th
, September 17

th
 and Sign Committee Report 

        d.)  Set Public Hearing date for November 4, 2013 and approve advertising to consider: 

 
               1.    Rezoning:       Christ the King Catholic Church / Main Campus 

              Location:     North of the intersection of Main Street 

       and Van Avenue and Southeast of the  

          Intersection of Guarisco and Trione Avenue  

              Present Zoning:          R-2, Medium Density Single Family 

         Residential District, R-3, High Density       

        Single Family Residential District 

  and B-2, General Business District 

              Requested Zoning:   B-1, Local Business District 

              Recommendation:  Unanimous Favorable 

 

 

 

 

1



COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                           OCTOBER 7, 2013                                PAGE   2 

 

 

 2. Rezoning:     Walter J. and Martin L. Pierce 

     Location:     Across from the intersection of U.S. Highway 90 

        and County Road 13; adjacent to the proposed 

        County Road 13 Interchange and Interstate 10 

             Present Zoning:     R-3, High Density Single Family Residential District 

             Requested Zoning:    B-2, General Business District 

               Recommendation:    Unanimous Favorable for Parcel 1 

        Unfavorable for Parcel 2 

 
   F.  Recreation Board  -  LeJeune 

   G. Utility Board - Fry    

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

           a.)  Parade Permit / Scott Ward Memorial “Fit for Duty” 5K Run / 1 Mile Run / November 17, 2013 

           b.)  Parade Permit / Run for Shep / “Benefiting Shepard Hall” / 5K Run / 12 Mile Run / January 25, 2014 

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report 

     C.  Department Head Comments 

     D.  City Clerk Report 

           a.)  ABC License / Uncorked Fine Wines / 010 – Lounge Retail Liquor – Class 1/ Change of Address 

                        

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus and Authorize Disposition . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-51 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

        2
ND 

READ      

a.) ATRIP Grants: Initial Survey, Design & Geo-Technical  

Engineering: Resurfacing Lake Forest Blvd (Lake Forest Phase IV) 

Resurfacing North Main Street. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-52 

 

b.)  Establish Penalties and Enforcement Procedures for  

 Violation of Municipal Ordinances. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-53 

 

c.)  Repealing Ordinance 2013-02 and Establishing 

 Public Works Equipment Use Policy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-54 

 

d.)  Revisions to Zoning Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-55 

 

e.)  Lodging Tax Appropriation / Bayfront Park Paving. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 20113-56 

 

1
ST

 READ 

f.)  Regulating the Keeping of Dogs, Cats, Domesticated Animals,  

 Livestock or Fowl within the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-57 

     

 9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN FRY      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

3



SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e1
 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Mr. Willie Robison gave the invocation. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell, John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis, 

III. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; 

Jay Ross, City Attorney; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public 

Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development; Richard Merchant, 

Building Official, Mike Hinson, Finance Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Christine 

Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Amelia Alawine, Animal Control; Rhonda Jones, Animal 

Control; Linda Matthews, Animal Control; Lt. Ric Yelding, Police Department, Animal Control; 

Toni Fassbender, IDB; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification and DRA; Larry Cooke, BZA; 

Darrelyn Bender, Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce. 

 

Absent: Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Vickie Hinman, HR Director. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

September 3, 2013 Council meeting minutes 

 

The August 19, 2013 council meeting minutes stand approved with the following amendment: 

Councilman Fry requested his comment made under Council Comments be amended to say  that 

the program to help those who cannot afford to pay their utility bill was called “Lend A Hand.” 

 

September 9, 2013 Council Work Session minutes 

 

There were no corrections to the September 9, 2013 Council Work Session minutes, and stand 

approved as written. 

 

August 26, 2013 Strategic Plan minutes 

 

There were no corrections to the August 26, 2013 Strategic Plan minutes, and stand approved as 

written. 

 

 

 

 

4



SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e2
 

CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION:       Ms. Amelia Alawine 

Mayor Haygood read and presented the certificate to Ms. Alawine as Chief Carpenter and Lt. Ric 

Yelding observed the presentation. 

PROCLAMATION:  Cancer Awareness Month / Calvin Hunt 

Mayor Haygood read and presented the proclamation to Mr. Hunt. Mr. Hunt asked everyone to 

remember Mayor Bailey Yelding who died of prostrate cancer. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:    Revisions to the Zoning Map 

Mrs. Jones gave the presentation. 

Council President Scott opened the Public Hearing at 6:47 p.m. 

No one spoke for or against the proposed revisions to the zoning map. 

Council President Scott closed the Public Hearing at 6:48 p.m. 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The minutes for the September 9
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to close the 2012 Investment Account and transfer 

the remaining funds to the 2012  Construction account, and once all projects approved to be 

funded with 2012  Construction monies are paid the balance then be transferred to the 

Capital Reserve Account.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

                                         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

Treasurers Report / August 31, 2013 

The draft report ending August 31,2013 is $15,794,164.40. 

 

Sales and Use Tax Collections / July 31, 2013 

July collections were up $17,467 over July’s budget amount and up $463,711 year-to-date. 

 

Lodging Tax Collections / July 31, 2013 

Lodging tax collections for July, 2013 were $94,310.47.  

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

5



SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e3
 

The minutes for the September 3
rd

 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be October 

7
th

. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY  COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The minutes for the September 11
th

  meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting is October 9
th

 

at 4:30 p.m. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The September 11
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The committee reviewed revisions to the Animal 

Control Ordinance and revisions to the Land Disturbance Ordinance and an Illicit Discharge 

Ordinance which will be coming for a first read in October. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met today, and the September 4
th

 Beautification Committee minutes and the 

Environmental Advisory Board minutes for June 24
th

 are in the packet.  The next meeting will be 

October 21
st
  at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 
      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No meeting. No report. 

 

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be September 25
th
  at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The August 26
th
 minutes are in the packet.  Councilman Davis deferred to the IDB Chairman, Mrs. Toni 

Fassbender. She appealed to council for additional funding so that they can get more aggressive in 

pursuing Airbus vendors. She also gave a brief history of the progression of the IDB funding and made an 

appeal for the city to either purchase some property for them or give them enough funding so that they 

could afford to buy something that they could offer to companies.  Mrs. Fassbender explained that the 

timing was perfect, because Airbus would be operational in a year, and if they didn’t act soon the city 

would be left in the dust.  She said that Councilman Davis is a great champion for the IDB, and it is a 

pleasure to have him as their representative. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The board met last Thursday.  He reminded everyone that the Jubilee Festival is the 28th and 

29
th

, and the Friends of the Library will be holding their annual book sale that weekend at the 

Library. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The Sign Committee minutes for the August 20 and 26
th

 meetings are in the packet.  The Site 

Preview meeting is Wednesday at 8:30 a.m., and the Planning Commission meeting will be next 

Thursday. 

6



SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e4
 

 

    F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 
No report. 

 

      G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be Wednesday, September 25
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Haygood asked council to adjourn into Executive Session at the end of the meeting to discuss the 

acquisition of real property.            

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

No report. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development – reported the Sign Committee will meet 

tomorrow with a demonstration of electronic signage. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported Brown Bag by the Bay will be for the next 

two months on Thursdays from 11:30 – 1:30. 

 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca Hayes –  
No report. 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Ms. Darrelyn Bender – Eastern Shore  Chamber of Commerce – spoke regarding the Blueprint 

for Tomorrow. 

 

Mr. Jake Williams – 130 Lake Front Drive – spoke regarding the infrastructure of Daphne. 

 

Council President Scott requested that council add Ordinance 2013-56 to the agenda regarding 

paving Bayfront Park parking lot.  He said it was inadvertently left off the agenda.   

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to add Ordinance 2013-56 to the agenda.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

7



SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e5
 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

       RESOLUTIONS: 

 
a.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus and Authorize Disposition . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-44 

b.)  Duplicate Resolution See 2013-47. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-45 

c.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus and Authorize Disposition. . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-46 

d.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus and Authorize Disposition. . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-47 

e.)  Bid Award: Safety Shoes/Boots / Eastern Shore Shoe Hospital. . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-48 

f.)  Bid Award: Uniforms / Unifirst Corp. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-49 

g.)  Appoint Two Directors  to the Board of Directors of the Special  

      Care Facilities Financing Authority of the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-50  

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolutions 2013-44, 

2013-46, 2013-47, 2013-48, 2013-49 and 2013-50.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                      MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolutions 2013-44, 2013-46, 2013-47, 

2013-48, 2013-49 and 2013-50.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                     MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

       ORDINANCES: 

       2
ND

  READ  
a.) Adopting Council Rules of Procedure. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-21 

    
b.)   Amend Employee Handbook / Revise Discrimination and 

        Harassment Prevention / Chapter 1, 7 & 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-47 

 

c.)  Amend Employee Handbook / Reorganize Chapter 9. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-48 

 

d.)   Amend Employee Handbook / Reorganize Chapter 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-49 

8



SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e6
 

       1
ST

 READ 

a.)  Adopting Fiscal Year 2014 Budget . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-50  

 

b.)  Adopting the Fiscal Year 2014 Capital Budget. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . /Ordinance 2013-51 

 

c.) ATRIP Grants: Initial Survey, Design & Geo-Technical  

Engineering: Resurfacing Lake Forest Blvd (Lake Forest Phase IV) 

Resurfacing North Main Street. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-52 

 

d.)  Establish Penalties and Enforcement Procedures for  

Violation of Municipal Ordinances. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-53 

 

e.)  Repealing Ordinance 2013-02 and Establishing 

Public Works Equipment Use Policy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-54 

 

f.)  Revisions to Zoning Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-55 

 

g.)   Lodging Tax Appropriation / Bayfront Park Paving. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 20113-56 

 

        

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-21.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                    MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2013-21.  Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

 

                                        MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-47.  Seconded 

by Councilman Fry. 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2013-47.  Seconded by Councilman 

Davis. 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

9



SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e7
 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-48 and 2013-49.  

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

          

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt Ordinances 2013-48 and 2013-49.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

                                               MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

ORDINANCES  2013-50, 2013-51, 2013-52,  2013-53, 2013-54, 2013-55 AND 

2013-56 ARE  1
ST

 READS. 
 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilwoman Conaway – asked everyone to keep those affected by the tragedy in Washington 

in their thoughts and prayers. 

 

Councilman Lake – recognized that this is the 25
th

 Annual Jubilee Festival, and he feels Mrs. 

Verna Elliot should be recognized for her contributions to the festival.  He mentioned the tree 

being cut down at the Firestone store. 

 

Councilman Fry echo’s Mrs. Conaway’s comments on keeping those affected by the tragedy in 

Washington in everyone’s thoughts and prayers. 

 

Councilman LeJeune commented on the Sign Committee saying it is great that citizens come 

out every week.  He said there will be a rate increase in utilities the board passed it last week at 

their meeting.  He said it is important to come out and be heard. 

 

Councilman Davis spoke regarding an article in the paper on reinventing businesses.  Businesses 

change based on the economy, worldwide economy, and Daphne can have those kinds of offices 

by putting together a marketing team whether they are staff, people in the community or from the 

business community.  He said that when you look at the numbers, education level, residents that 

identify what Daphne is Daphne does not have to stand second fiddle to anyone.  He mentioned 

another article that ranked Daphne fourth in a business standing. He thinks they should free the 

mayor to pursue marketing.  This is a time for the city to move forward and think about new 

ways of doing things, attracting the people that will be doing this somewhere in this region.  The 

city has excellent department heads, and there are excellent programs in place, and what council 

needs to do is get outside their own little box and they need to be telling people and other parts of 

10



SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e8
 

the country about Daphne, and they need to free the mayor to do that, and any of the rest of 

council and others that can be a part of that team will be good money spent whether it is through 

the Chamber of Commerce or through marketing efforts. 

 

Council President Scott spoke regarding Firestone cutting down a tree saying that it was a safety 

issue, and that ALDOT asked them to line their entrance up with the crossover on U.S. 98.  He 

said that Firestone did everything according to city ordinances, and that Firestone was planting 

four live oaks to replace the one cut down. 

 

Mayor Haygood reminded everyone that the Jubilee Festival is September 28
th

 and 29
th

, and 

encouraged everyone to come out a support the festival.  He thought Mr. Hunt’s comments were 

excellent regarding Mayor Yelding.  He said that some of the employee and employees children 

have had cancer, and that cancer touches everyone, and that we are not promised tomorrow.  He 

encouraged everyone to go to the doctor and be checked out.  He mentioned that the 

Beautification Committee will be taking a road trip for their next meeting.  They have been 

invited to tour the City of Fairhope and their green house.  He reminded everyone of the Special 

Called Council meeting on September 23
rd

 to consider the budget. 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss the 

acquisition of real property, and the meeting will last approximately 20 minutes.   Seconded 

by Councilman Davis. 

The City Attorney, Jay Ross, certified that the above mentioned reason for going into 

Executive Session was according to the Open Meetings Act. 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

11



SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e9
 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING 

ADJOURNEDAT 7:45 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

         

                                                     

__________________________________    

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk       

 

        Certification of Presiding Officer,    

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Ron Scott, Council President      

12



SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

  

2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION  /  Reverend Stuart Davidson / Eastern Shore Church of Christ 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis, III. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; 

Britton Bonner, Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Richard Merchant, Building 

Official; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Tonja Young, Library Director; Vickie Hinman, HR 

Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Mike Hinson, Finance Director; Christine Ciancetta, 

Deputy Finance Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; John Williams, 

Civic Center.  

 

 

 

3. ORDINANCE 2013-50 / FY 2014 OPERATIONAL BUDGET 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waived the reading of Ordinance 2013-50.  Seconded by 

Councilman Rudicell.                                              

 

                                                  MOTION CARRIES UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2013-50.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

AMENDMENTS: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to reduce the Executive Travel and Training Budget from 

$15,000 to $10,000.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Nay     LeJeune  Nay 

Rudicell  Aye     Davis   Nay 

Lake   Aye     Scott   Nay 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake, Fry                              NAY    Conaway, LeJeune, Davis, Scott 

 

                                                            MOTION FAILS 

 

13



SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to reduce the Legislative Travel and Training budget from 

$36,000 to $27,000.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

          MOTION CARRIES UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to reduce Court Overtime budget from $5,000 to $2,500.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                        MOTION CARRIES UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to amend the contribution for the Maintenance of Daphne High 

School ball fields from $20,000 to $10,000.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

After discussion Councilman Rudicell withdrew his motion and Councilman Lake withdrew his second. 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to reduce the contribution for the Maintenance of Daphne High 

School ball fields from $20,000 to $15,000.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIES UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Davis to reduce the contribution to Mobile National Estuary Program 

from $500 to $5,000.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Davis, Scott                        NAY    Conaway, LeJeune 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIES UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to reduce the Capital Reserve Fund from $250,000 to $200,000.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake.  

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, LeJeune, Scott                      NAY    Davis 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIES UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

 

14



SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to reduce the contribution for Blueprint for Tomorrow from 

$35,000 to $20,000.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Davis  Nay    Rudicell  Aye 

LeJeune  Aye    Conaway  Aye 

Fry   Aye    Scott   Nay 

Lake   Aye     

 

AYE    LeJeune, Fry, Lake, Rudicell, Conaway   NAY    Davis, Scott 

 

     MOTION CARRIED                       

 

 
MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway for the Equipment Purchases go to the Finance Committee for 

approval.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 
After discussion Councilwoman Conaway withdrew her motion and Councilman Lake withdrew his 

second. 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to reduce the Equipment Purchases budget to $0, and to 

bring these requests before the Finance Committee for approval.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway   Aye    LeJeune  Nay 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Nay 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry   NAY    LeJeune, Davis, Scott 

 

                                             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to reduce the Renovation and Building Improvement 

budgets to $0, and to bring these requests before the Finance Committee for approval.  Seconded by 

Councilman Rudicell. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway   Aye    LeJeune  Nay 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Nay 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry   NAY    LeJeune, Davis, Scott 

 

                                             MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to add $65,000 to the budget for one (1) mile of sidewalks in 

Lake Forest.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

    MOTION CARRIES UNANIMOUSLY     

 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION AS AMENDED     
 

 

    MOTION CARRIES UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

4. ORDINANCE 2013-51 / FY 2014 CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-51.  Seconded by 

Councilman Davis. 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

16



SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2013-51.  Seconded by Councilman 

Davis. 

 

AMENDMENTS: 

 
MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to eliminate the City Administrator position.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Davis  Nay    Rudicell  Aye 

LeJeune  Aye    Conaway  Aye 

Fry   Aye    Scott   Nay 

Lake   Aye 

 

AYE    LeJeune, Fry, Lake, Rudicell, Conaway   NAY    Davis, Scott 

 

                      MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Lake to eliminate the IT/Marketing/Communication position.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Nay 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Nay 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry    NAY    LeJeune, Davis, Scott 

 

                            MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to combine the HR Training Coordinator and Nurse into one 

position, and taken out of the Police Department and put in HR. 

 

 

        MOTION FAILS FOR LACK OF A SECOND 

 

 

17



SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to reduce the HR Training Coordinator to a part-time 

position from $52,170 to not to exceed $26,000 including benefits.  Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway   Aye    LeJeune  Nay 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott   NAY    LeJeune, Davis 

 

      MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to eliminate one part-time Library Aide position.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway  Nay    LeJeune  Nay 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Nay 

Fry   Nay 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake   NAY    Conaway, Fry, LeJeune, Davis, Scott 

 

     MOTION FAILED 

 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to eliminate the Recreation Coordinator position.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway   Nay    LeJeune  Nay 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Nay 

Fry   Nay 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake   NAY    Conaway, Fry, LeJeune, Davis, Scott 

 

                MOTION FAILED   

18



SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adopt Ordinance 2013-51 as amended.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 
AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, LeJeune, Scott  NAY    Davis 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED     

 

 
5. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Mayor Haygood said he is glad the budget is behind them so they can get on with business as usual, 

and do the best they can for the citizens.  He said they can still work with a professional attitude.  He 

thanked the council for the job that they do. 

 

Councilman Lake stated that as long as he has been on the council they have never passed a deficit 

budget. 

 

Councilman Davis said if you spend more than you take in during the year, call it what you may, 

that is what had happened for a few years, and while you cannot pass a deficit budget, as long as you 

have the money you can spend it.  His opinion of what they have done over a few years was more 

along those lines rather than breaking some kind of state law. 

 

Councilman Scott said with the exception of 2010 and 2011 where they took money out of the 

reserves to pay for the Lake Forest capital improvements they have always collected more money 

than was spent, always 100%.  His first year on council was 2004, and they inherited about $4 

million, and when Mayor Small left they were up to $12 million in reserves, and at that point they 

decided that was too much to have, and they had so many cattle needs, so they took dollars out of 

reserves to start paving projects, and they have a commitment not to go below $8 million. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

    MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       Certification of Presiding Officer: 

                                                           

      
_______________________________     _______________________________                                                          

Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk   Ron Scott, Council President     

       

19



SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

STRATEGIC PLAN MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

4:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

Councilman Davis called the meeting to order at 4:40 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:  Councilwoman Conaway; Councilman Lake; Councilman Fry; Council President Scott; 

Councilman LeJeune; Councilman Davis; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jane Ellis, Mayor’s Assistant; 

Sarah Toulman Assistant City Clerk; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public 

Works Director. 

 

Absent:  Mayor Haygood 

 

1. PUB LIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

2. PRESENTATION / SARAH TOULSON 

Sarah presented a power point presentation from information sent to her by one of her professors at North 

Carolina University to help with creating good goals and how to get there. (Presentation spread out upon 

these minutes) 
 

A. Recreation 

1.  Priorities 

           i.   Tennis Courts 

                 a.  Determine how many tennis courts citizens need 

           b.  According to the USTA at least four (4) (2 sets of 2) are needed 

           c.  Cost / $35,000 per court  ($80,000 - $120,000) 

           d.  Need timeline plan  

           e.  Need to determine how to pay for facilities 

           f.  Fee Structure 

    ii.    Girls Softball fields / Boys Baseball fields 

   iii.    Skateboard Park 

 

Sarah will prepare another presentation on the remaining goals for the next meeting. 

 

3.  HOMEWORK: 

Review handout for next meeting.                  

 

 

4.. WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

There were no other necessary items to discuss. 

 

The next meeting in two weeks, October 14
th
 
 
after the Finance Committee meeting.  

The meeting adjourned at 5:50 p.m. 

 

 

Submitted by                 Certification of Presiding Officer 

 

_____________________________                         ____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk    Ron Scott, Council President 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



OCTOBER 7, 2013 COUNCIL MEETING 

 

BREAST CANCER AWARENESS 

PRESENT WINNER OF DESIGN FOR T-SHIRTS 

 FROM DAPHNE HIGH SCHOOL CONTEST 

27



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

28



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

29



Community Development P.O. Box 400 Daphne, AL 36526.  All meetings held at 1705 Main Street. 
www.Daphneal.com/residents/Community-Development Phone # 251-621-3184 

Contacts: Adrienne Jones, Director/Zoning Administrator or  Pat Johnson, Administrative Assistant                          

MEETINGS & SUBMITTALS  

 January  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

       
 

 February  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

 
 

    1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28  

       
 

 March  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

 
 

    1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31      
 

 April  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30    

       
 

 May  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

       
 

 June  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30      

       
 

 July  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31   

       
 

 August  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31       
 

 September  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30     

       
 

 October  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

       
 

 November  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

 
 

    1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30       
 

 December  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31    

       
 

 
Regular Meeting 6 pm Cut-off for next 

month’s meeting  

 2
0

1
4

  D
A

P
H

N
E B

O
A

R
D

 O
F ZO

N
IN

G
 A

D
JU

STM
EN

T C
A

LEN
D

A
R

 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



Community Development P.O. Box 400 Daphne, AL 36526.  All meetings held at 1705 Main Street. 
www.Daphneal.com/residents/Community-Development Phone # 251-621-3184 

Contacts: Adrienne Jones, Director/Zoning Administrator or  Jan Vallecillo, Planning Coordinator  09/26/13                         

MEETINGS & SUBMITTALS  

 January  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

       
 

 February  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28  

       
 

 March  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31      
 

 April  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30    

       
 

 May  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

       
 

 June  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30      

       
 

 July  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31   

       
 

 August  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31       
 

 September  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30     

       
 

 October  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

       
 

 November  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30       
 

 December  
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31    

       
 

 

Site Preview Meeting 8:30 am Regular Meeting 5 pm Cut-off for next 
month’s meeting  

 2
0

1
4

  D
A

P
H

N
E P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
ISSIO

N
 C

A
LEN

D
A

R
 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



Pa
ge

1 

CITY OF DAPHNE  
SIGN COMMITTEE REPORT  

TO  
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
 
 
 

DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
  

COMMITTEE 
APPOINTMENTS 
 

Tommie Conaway 
District 1 Elnora Jackson 

Pat Rudicell 
District 2 Steve Robinson 

John L. Lake 
District 3 Bill Burdick 

Randy Fry 
District 4 Toni Fassbender 

Ron Scott 
District 5 John Peterson 

Robin Lejeune 
District 6 Victor Lejeune 

Joe Davis, III 
District 7 Frieda Romanchuck 

 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF LIAISONS:  
ADRIENNE JONES, FACILITATOR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

LONNIE JONES, CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 

PAT JOHNSON, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY & SIGN 
COMMITTEE RECORDING SECRETARY 

55



Pa
ge

2 

INTRODUCTION 

In June 2013, the City Council agreed to form a committee to study and make recommendations 
in regard to the regulation of signs.  A sixty day period was initially prescribed and an extension 
was approved for the committee to make a report of recommendations to the City Council.  
Attached is the committee recommendation as voted on September 24, 2013.   

SIGN COMMITTEE VOTE SUMMARY 

Wall mounted sign  
Motion:  Approve wall mounted sign proposal as written 
Approval (6 aye, 1 nay) 

Political signs  
Motion: Approve Political Sign proposal except #11 (11 - Attachment to vehicles. Political 
signs not more than four (4) square feet in area may be attached to private or commercial vehicles 
used for transportation or business purposes. ) 
Unanimous approval 

Electronic signs 
Motion: Approve with notations* made  
Approval (5 aye, 1 present, 1 nay) 

Commercial Real Estate and other temporary advertising signs 
Motion: Approve with notations* made 
Unanimous approval 

Temporary Promotional signs 
Motion: Approve with notations* made 
Unanimous approval 

*see notations on subsequent pages 

ADDENDUM -- REAL ESTATE BUILDER/SUBDIVISION DIRECTIONAL SIGNAGE 

Real Estate Builder/Subdivision Directional Signage – was discussed with general consensus of 
the committee on 07/23/13 but was mistakenly excluded from the voting material.  Received 3 
responses and favorable votes via email and 1 via phone to include the following items: 
 

No placement in the right of way, on private property  
Need a sign permit which is subject annual renewal 
Location at subdivision entrances, no closer than 500-ft within a certain distance of the 
development 
size limitation 32 sq. ft. -same as commercial real estate signs discussed 7/16/13 
max number- 1 per entrance 
condition of removal-no more lots to sale; maintained in good repair 

 

  

56



Pa
ge

3 

FORMATTING 

The original draft proposal is included with notations* of changes highlighted. Underline 
indicates new language to be added to an existing section or an entirely new section. 
Strikethrough  (strikethrough) indicates language to be removed from existing section.  
Strikethrough with underline (strikethrough with underline) indicates a change to the originally 
presented proposal.  Items in red were added at the September 24th meeting. 

Additional formatting and language can be expected during the course of review.  

 

  

57



Pa
ge

4 

 
WALL MOUNTED SIGNS PROPOSAL 

Motion:  Approve wall mounted sign proposal as written 
Approval (6 aye, 1 nay) 

 
 
 
General Sign Provisions—Article 33-10 

Wall-mounted signs:  Each establishment in a shopping center or each business premises in 
B-1, Local Business, B-2, General Business, B-3, Professional, and C/I, 
Commercial/Industrial, districts may acquire an additional permit for a wall-mounted sign of 
a size not to exceed the lesser of three hundred (300) square feet or twenty (20) percent 
three hundred fifty square feet or thirty (30%) percent of the surface frontal area of its 
building or portion of building. Signs mounted on mansards, marquees, and awnings are 
deemed to be wall signs.  

 
Eastern Shore Park Overlay Sign Provisions—Article 37-15 

Wall-mounted signs: Each establishment in a shopping center or each business premises in 
B-1, Local Business, B-2, General Business, B-3, Professional, and C/I, 
Commercial/Industrial districts may acquire an additional permit for a wall-mounted sign of 
a size not to exceed the lesser of three hundred fifty (350) square feet or thirty (30) 
percent four hundred (400) square feet or forty (40%) percent of the surface frontal area 
of the building. Signs mounted on mansards, marquees, and awnings are deemed to be wall 
signs.  

 
In the Eastern Shore Park District each establishment which borders Interstate 10 may 
acquire an additional permit for an interstate-side wall mounted sign not to exceed fifty 
(50%) percent of the wall mounted sign on the surface frontal area of the building.   
‘Interstate-side’ shall be deemed the side parallel to or predominately facing Interstate 
10. 

 
A business establishment with over forty thousand (40,000) square feet of building area may 
have on (1) additional wall-mounted sign of a size not to exceed one hundred (100) square 
feet for the purpose of advertising an accessory use or name identification.  
 
A business with over one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet of building area may have 
two (2) additional wall-mounted signs of a size not to exceed one hundred (100) square feet 
each for the purpose of advertising accessory uses or name identification. No business 
establishment can have more than three (3) wall-mounted signs.  

 

58



Pa
ge

5 

Jubilee Square Retail Overlay District—Article 39-16 

Wall-mounted signs: Each establishment/business premises under sixty-five thousand 
(65,000) square feet of building area in B-1, Local Business and B-2, General Business 
districts may acquire an additional permit for a wall-mounted sign of a size not to exceed the 
lesser of three hundred fifty (350) four hundred (400) square feet or thirty (30) forty 
(40%) percent of the surface frontal area of the building. Each establishment sixty-five 
thousand (65,000) square feet of building area or larger may acquire a permit for wall 
mounted signage of a size not to exceed six and one-half (6.5) percent of the surface frontal 
area of the building. Signs mounted on mansards, marquees, and awnings are deemed to be 
wall signs.   

59



Pa
ge

6 

COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE AND OTHER TEMPORARY  
ADVERTISING SIGNS PROPOSAL 

Motion: Approve with notations made 
Unanimous Approval 

 

TEMPORARY COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE SIGN-- Article 33-5 

Undeveloped Property 

A temporary commercial real estate sign advertising undeveloped or vacant real property for 
sale, lease, or rent will be permitted provided the area of each sign shall not exceed thirty-two 
(32) square feet, 10 feet in height, is non-illuminated, and is within the confines of the 
development. An additional temporary commercial real estate advertising sign may be 
permitted at each street frontage, but shall be no closer than 500 feet along the same street 
with no more than four such signs per premise.  

In the event that such premises abuts Interstate 10 right-of-way, said temporary commercial 
real estate advertising sign shall be allowed up to sixty-four (64) square feet, 10 feet in 
height, is non-illuminated, and is within the confines of the development.  

 

Developed Property 

A temporary commercial real estate sign advertising developed real property for sale, lease, 
or rent will be permitted for each individual business premises, shopping center premises, 
commercial/industrial business, subdivision, planned unit development, mobile home park 
and mobile home subdivision, provided the area of each sign shall not exceed the following: 

 

Ground sign:  a commercial/industrial (C/I) and all business (B-1, B-2 and B-3) zones, 
provided the area of each sign shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet, 10 feet in height, 
is non-illuminated, and is within the confines of the development.  

 

Window sign: Indoor signage or window signs which advertise commercial real estate may 
cover no more than twenty (20) percent of the window glass surface area. 

 

Wall sign: A temporary commercial real estate wall sign advertising developed real property 
for sale, lease, or rent will be permitted not to exceed 350 sq. ft. or 30% of the frontal area of 
the building or portion of the building. 

60



Pa
ge

7 

Additional Provisions for Temporary Advertising Signs 

General provision: upon securing a building permit from Building Inspections for new 
construction, renovation or expansion of an existing building, and securing a city business 
license from the Revenue Department, a temporary non-illuminated sign not more than 
thirty-two (32) square feet in area, may be erected in connection with new construction work 
and displayed on the premises during such time as the actual construction work is in 
progress. One (1) such sign, which shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height, is allowed for 
each street frontage. Such signs shall be removed upon completion of the project.  

In the event that such premises abuts Interstate 10 right-of-way, said temporary sign shall be 
allowed up to sixty-four (64) square feet, 10 feet in height, is non-illuminated, and is within 
the confines of the development.  

Temporary under construction site identification sign. A temporary sign located on the 
site of a construction project which identifies the owners, architects, engineers, contractors, 
mechanics, artisans, craftsmen, financial institutions, and other individuals or firms involved 
with the construction, but does not include any advertisement of any product, service, or 
activity, except that such sign may include information regarding sale or leasing, and words 
announcing the name or character of the building enterprise or the purpose for which the 
building is intended shall be permitted and where in accordance with General Provisions 
noted above.  

Temporary advertising “coming soon”  sign: A temporary advertising sign calls attention 
to an establishment, merchandise, product, or service which is sold, provided, manufactured, 
or furnished on the premise as “coming soon.”  One such sign shall be permitted to the owner 
for the development for each individual business premises, shopping center premises, 
commercial/industrial business, subdivision, planned unit development, mobile home park 
and mobile home subdivision, where in accordance with General Provisions noted above.  

A temporary name identification sign will be permitted on each premise for a new business 
or a business starting in a new location where the premises is without a permitted permanent 
sign for a period of not more than sixty (60) days or until mounting of a permanently 
permitted sign. Temporary under construction, advertising sign “coming soon”, and name 
identification sign shall be removed upon issuance of a certificate of occupancy, no later than 
the grand opening.  

 

  

61



Pa
ge

8 

ELECTRONIC SIGNS PROPOSAL 
Motion: Approve with notations made 

Approval (5 aye, 1 present, 1 nay) 

 

Electronic Signs For Business or Religious Establishments-- Article 33-10  

Other business or religious establishments shall be allowed to maintain an electronic sign on 
premise for the purpose of advertisement for that business or establishment provided that such 
sign complies with the following provisions.  

Sign Permit Required 

Any electronic and/or digital sign or sign component shall obtain a permit from the Code 
Enforcement Officer prior to installation. 

Prohibited Locations 

Electronic signs shall be prohibited  in Olde Towne Daphne Overlay , in any residential zone 
district, except a use permitted by special exception of the Board of Zoning Adjustment (for 
example a church, hospital, school or similar use) may be permitted subject to Planning 
Commission approval), in  a Mixed Use zone districts and, off premise.  

Prohibited Effects 

Scrolling or traveling of a message on changeable copy is prohibited. 

Image shall be static, shall not be animated, intermittent, and/or full video.  Flashing, 
strobing, and/or racing shall be prohibited.  No sign can be designed or displayed to imitate 
traffic safety lights and/or signs. 

Changeable copy shall not and shall not appear to flash, undulate, pulse, blink, expand, contract, 
bounce, rotate, spin, twist, or otherwise move. 

No animation, no sequential messaging, no streaming video, no sound, no sequencing to appear 
as motion. 

On Premise digital and/or electronic sign provisions 

The following provisions shall apply:   

May be incorporated into the body of a monument sign or pylon sign and shall not be placed at 
any other location on site; shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) of the monument sign or pylon 
sign face; shall not exceed 30 sq. ft. per sign face and 15 sq. ft. per sign face; and shall be no 
more than 33% white or similar color. 

62



Pa
ge

9 

Any monument and/or pylon sign that incorporates digital and/or electronic signage shall not 
exceed 12-ft in height. 

Mode of Operation  

The following describes the means in which an electronic sign may operate: 

Changeable copy  

A digital sign shall only display a static image and, there shall not be a transition between 
messages. A message change may occur once every five minutes thirty (30) seconds. 

Images and messages must be complete in themselves without continuation in context to the next 
image or message or to another sign. 

Brightness 

a. Illuminated digital signs shall not emit more than 5,000 nits/foot candle in full daylight and 
1000 nits /foot candle between dusk and dawn.  

All electronic signs shall have functioning ambient light monitors and automatic dimming 
equipment which shall at all times be set to automatically reduce the brightness level of the sign 
proportionally to any reduction in the ambient light. In no event shall an illuminated digital 
sign emit more than 5,000 nits/foot candle in full daylight and 1,000 nits/foot candle 
between dusk and dawn. 

Settings or interface controlling settings must be made available to Code Enforcement upon 
request.  Settings shall include but are not limited to any settings or schedules related to 
brightness, luminosity, copy change or other settings which could affect compliance with 
electronic sign provisions as set forth in this ordinance.  

Regardless of any other requirement, illuminated signs shall not project light that exceeds 1/10 of 
a foot candle above the ambient light at any property line bordering any residential zone district.  

Sign must be designed and equipped to freeze the device in one position if a malfunction occurs. 
The displays must also be equipped with a means to immediately discontinue the display if it 
malfunctions, and the sign owner must immediately stop the display when notified by the city 
that it is not complying with the standards of this ordinance. 

 

  

63



Pa
ge

10
 

TEMPORARY PROMOTIONAL SIGNS PROPOSAL 
Motion: Approve with notations made 

Unanimous approval 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS—Article 33-5 

Temporary promotional sign.  Any on-premise sign with a commercial message, including 
but not limited to a banner or advertising display constructed of cloth, canvas, light fabric, 
cardboard, wall board or other light materials, with or without frames, intended to be 
displayed for a short period of time only.  

This definition does not apply to the following: temporary commercial real estate signs, 
political signs, coming soon signs, under construction signs, real estate builder signs, or 
subdivision information signs.  

Placement 

Must be at least 5 feet from the edge of a public street, located on premise on private 
property except for tethered inflatables. 

Shall not to obstruct the view of or impede pedestrian or vehicular traffic along any right-of-
way or interior driveway. 

Shall not located on accessory structures or buildings 

Prohibitions 

Bench signs, ladder signs, snipe signs and any portable or moveable sign that is not expressly 
allowed in the sign provisions.  

Signs in a state of disrepair and poorly maintained. 

  

64



Pa
ge

11
 

A-FRAME SANDWICH BOARD SIGNS 

A-frame sandwich sign.   A movable on-premise sign not secured or attached to the ground 
that is a sign with two sign faces that are connected at the top of the sign by a hinge 
mechanism which allows the base of the sign to be expanded outward to form the shape of an 
"A" that is used to display products, services, menu items, daily specials, upcoming events or 
to advertise sales or bargains.  

Permit required?  no 

Number:  1 per primary entrance unless in multi-tenant establishment with common entry 
way. Only one (1) per building per entrance per street frontage 

Location: Placement should not obstruct view or flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic.  

1 sign allowed within 20-ft of the front entrance of single tenant establishment  

Multi-tenant establishment with one common entry way, a-frame sandwich boards are not 
allowed. 

Multi-tenant establishment with individual exterior entry may be allowed within 5-ft of that 
entrance. 

Size: Sign faces added together not greater than 25 square feet.  

Timing: Shall be moved and properly stored during non-business hours and/or inclement 
weather. 

Shall be used during hours of business only. 

 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A-FRAME SIGNS 
Upon approval of the code enforcement officer, an institutional use such as Life South, American 
Red Cross, The Haven, The Animal Shelter, or Community Action, may be permitted to place a 
sandwich board sign within the right of way only during hours of operation for special event.  
The sign shall be removed at the close of business.  
 
One such sign may be utilized per establishment and should be located at the right of way closest 
to the establishment. Placement of said sign should not obstruct view or flow of pedestrian or 
vehicular traffic.   

65



Pa
ge

12
 

TEMPORARY PROMOTIONAL BANNERS 

Temporary Promotional Banner.  A strip of cloth, paper, canvas, or similar material, on 
which a professionally printed  message, slogan or emblem is painted, drawn or otherwise 
projected, colored or shaped with only such material for a backing for the purpose of 
advertising or drawing attention to a product, object, facility, activity or idea. A banner may 
be used to advertise a unique event or special recurring business marketing promo and to be 
removed upon completion of that event and/or promotion.  The temporary promotional 
banner is not intended to replace a permanent business identification sign nor to circumvent 
the sign permit application process. 

A single tenant building and/ or multi-tenant building with individual entrances shall be 
allowed to utilize a sixteen (16) square foot temporary promotional banner for up to twenty 
eight days per calendar year. In no case shall there be more than two consecutive 14 day 
intervals.  The business shall acquire a no cost permit from Code Enforcement prior to 
posting the temporary promotional banner. Said temporary banner use shall not count against 
any promotional weekend, holiday, or event as allowed by Council. 

Said banner may be located as follows: attached, connected or tethered to the building 
façade; or, supported by stakes or other similar devices. 

Said banner may not be located in the road right-of-way or alleyway; or located so as to 
obstruct the view or impede pedestrian or vehicular traffic. 

 
Size:  

32 sq. ft. max unless the property is part of a unified development that abuts I-10 and/or a 
State highway then the max shall be 50 sq. ft. 

Time: 

1. No more than 30 days but no less than promotional period  

66



Pa
ge

13
 

PACKAGING  

Grand Opening,  Re-opening, and Conventions Marketing Package:  

One temporary marketing package is allowed per street frontage for each lot, business or 
residential development.  

14 day duration with permit for grand re-openings 

30 day duration with permit for grand openings  

Convention marketing shall be commensurate with the convention.  

A grand opening marketing package may include a combination of 5 of the following 
temporary marketing signs:  

1 promotional banner not to exceed 32 sq. ft. in size may be located at each street frontage; 

promotional flags (shall be separated by at least 20-ft); 

1 tethered inflatable 3-d object , the maximum height shall be no more than 50-feet, and 
shall be setback at least 100-ft from the property line, and may be located at each street 
frontage; and, 

3 other items from the following list: 

a. Balloons; or  
b. Yard signs - 3 yard signs count as 1 item;  
c. Pennants - 3 sets count as 1 item; 
d. Streamers - 3 sets count as 1 item; or, 
e. Bunting - 3 sets count as 1 item  

67



Pa
ge

14
 

ADVERTISING PACKAGE FOR RETAIL AND COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENTS: 

Weekends  

Timing:  Friday commencing no earlier than six (6) a.m., the following Saturday and Sunday, 
as well as Monday, if such Monday should coincide with a National holiday and/or any other 
State recognized holiday.  

All items shall be removed from the premises at the close of the final business day of the 
weekend or at the close of the business day on Monday, should Monday fall on a holiday the 
requirements outlined above shall apply. 

Number: Advertising package may include 3 of the following items:  

Balloons;  
Yard signs - 3 yard signs count as 1 item;  
Pennants - 3 sets count as 1 item; 
Streamers - 3 sets count as 1 item; or, 
Bunting - 3 sets count as 1 item 
Flags (shall be separated by at least 20-ft) 
tethered inflatable 3-d object setback at least 100-ft from the road frontage may be located at 
each street frontage; or 1 tethered inflatable 3-d object , the maximum height shall be no 
more than 50-feet, and shall be setback at least 100-ft from the property line, 
1 promotional banner not to exceed 20 16 sq. ft. in size may be located at each street frontage 

 

Holiday Advertising Package For Retail and Commercial Establishments 

Timing:  commencing no earlier than six (6) a.m. on a National holiday and/or any other 
State recognized holiday.  

All items shall be removed from the premises at the close of the final business day of the 
holiday the requirements outlined above shall apply. 

Holiday Advertising package may include 3 of the following items: 

Balloons;  
Yard signs - 3 yard signs count as 1 item;  
Pennants - 3 sets count as 1 item; 
Streamers - 3 sets count as 1 item; or, 
Bunting - 3 sets count as 1 item 
Flags (shall be separated by at least 20-ft) 
tethered inflatable 3-d object setback at least 100-ft from the road frontage may be located at 
each street frontage; or 
1 promotional banner not to exceed 20 16 sq. ft. in size may be located at each street frontage  

68



Pa
ge

15
 

POLITICAL SIGNS PROPOSAL 
Motion: Approve Political Sign proposal except #11 (11 - Attachment to vehicles. 

Political signs not more than four (4) square feet in area may be attached to private or 
commercial vehicles used for transportation or business purposes. ) 

Unanimous Approval 
 

Purpose:  The purpose of this article is to establish rules and regulations for sign control during 
local political campaigns.  

Enactment.  The city, in order to promote the health, safety, convenience, order, prosperity, and 
general welfare of the residents, to ensure equal opportunity to political candidates during the 
election process, and to maintain the beauty and natural attraction of the local environment, 
hereby ordains and enacts into law a sign control ordinance applicable to political campaigns. 
The requirements of this article shall be supplementary to any other ordinances, rules and 
regulations of the city and the state currently in force and effect.  

Authority.  This article is hereby adopted pursuant to authority granted by Code of Ala. 1975, §§ 
11-52-1—11-52-84.  

Applicability. Political signs are exempt from the permit requirements of the land use and 
development ordinance of the city. 

Painting on or attaching to public property, or utility property.  Political signs shall not be 
erected, constructed, posted or painted on any publicly maintained city, county, state or federal 
right-of-way, utility pole, tree, bench, fence, awning, or stand pipe; nor attached to any city, 
county, state or federal roadway marker, directional sign or informational sign.  

Attaching to business or commercial establishment signs. Political signs shall not be attached to 
any existing identification, announcement or pricing sign for any business or commercial 
establishment.  

Impeding traffic.  Political signs shall not be located in such a manner as to materially impede 
the view of any street or highway intersection or to adversely affect ingress or egress from 
parking lots or driveways.  

Districts in which authorized, nonilluminated.  Two (2) nonilluminated political signs per lot or 
parcel may be placed on private property in any zoning district in the city.  

Maximum size in residential districts. Political signs in residential districts shall not exceed four 
(4) square feet in area or four (4) feet in height.  

Maximum size in business, commercial and industrial districts. Political signs in business, 
commercial and industrial districts shall not exceed sixteen (16) square feet in area or eight (8) 
feet in height.  

69



Pa
ge

16
 

11 - Attachment to vehicles. 

Political signs not more than four (4) square feet in area may be attached to private or 
commercial vehicles used for transportation or business purposes.  

Use of party balloons. Customary size party balloons imprinted with a political ad may be 
tethered to any political sign, provided such balloons do not rise more than four (4) feet above 
the sign to which they are attached and that not more than two (2) such balloons are attached to 
any one (1) sign.  

Period of placement. Political signs may be displayed for the duration of a campaign and shall be 
removed within five (5) days following the election. A candidate shall not place signs prior to 
qualifying to run for office with the qualifying entities administering the election. 

Failure to remove—Fining of candidate. If political signs are not removed within five (5) days 
after the election, candidates whose names appear on such signs shall be subject to a fine of 
twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per sign and each day such sign shall continue to be left after the 
election shall constitute a new offense.  

Same—Removal by city. Any sign found not to be in compliance with the requirements of this 
article shall be removed by city personnel and the candidate whose name appears on such sign 
shall be subject to a fine of twenty-five dollars ($25.00), for each nonconforming sign. 

70



 

 

SET DATE FOR PUBLIC HEARING  

 

NOVEMBER 4, 2013 
 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 
1.      Rezoning:        Christ the King Catholic Church / Main Campus 

 

         Location:     North of the intersection of Main Street 

       And Van Avenue; and Southeast of the  

           Intersection of Guarisco and Trione Avenue  

 

         Present Zoning:          R-2, Medium Density Single Family 

  Residential District, R-3, High Density       

  Single Family Residential District 

  and B-2, General Business District 

 

         Requested Zoning:   B-1, Local Business District 

 

         Recommendation:      Unanimous Favorable 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

2. Rezoning:      Walter J. and Martin L. Pierce 

 

 Location:      Across from the intersection of U.S. Highway 90 

        And County Road 13; adjacent to the proposed 

        County Road 13 Interchange and Interstate 10 

 

 Present Zoning:     R-3, High Density Single Family Residential District 

 

 Requested Zoning:    B-2, General Business District 

 

 Recommendation:    Unanimous Favorable for Parcel 1 

        Unfavorable for Parcel 2 

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

119



RESOLUTION 2013 - 51 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne that  

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 

    

DEPT EQ/VEH#          DESCRIPTION                                                     VIN VIN # / SERIAL # 
Mowing 1336 2010 John Deere Mower TC1565D090169 

Mowing 1198 2000 CHEVROLET 3500 CREW CAB 1GBHC33R7YF481948 

 
    

          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2013. 
           
      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

120



ORDINANCE  2013 - 52 
ATRIP Grants: Initial Survey, Design & Geo-Technical Engineering:  

 Resurfacing Lake Forest Boulevards (Lake Forest Phase IV)  

 Resurfacing North Main Street  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget on 
October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did heretofore make application for funding through 
Alabama Transportation Rehabilitation and  Improvement Program (ATRIP) to assist 
with City Road Projects.  
 
WHEREAS, the project to resurface Lake Forest Boulevards Phase IV and North 
Main Street was approved for grant funding through the ATRIP Grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, project consulting services will be required to meet the requirements of 
the ATRIP Grant; and,  
 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the ATRIP Grant requirements and agree that monies 
need to be appropriated for initial survey, design and geo-technical engineering fees. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor is 
hereby authorized to enter into any required contracts for the Grant on behalf of the 
City of Daphne for the following projects 

 CODFY2013-1 - ATRIP Project No.:02-05-34 North Main Street Resurfacing – Hatch 
Mott MacDonald 

o Initial Survey & Design                        $ 43,565.00 
o Project Total (up front)                        $ 43,565.00 

 
 CODFY2013-3 - ATRIP Project No.:2-05-35 Lake Forest Blvds–Phase IV- HMR 

o Initial Survey & Design                        $ 96,287.00 
o Initial Geo-Technical Engineering       $ 20,600.00 
o Project Total (up front)                        $116,887.00 

                                              
and that funds in the amount of $160,452 as available from the 2012 Construction Fund 
with the balance being funded from the Capital Reserve Fund and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2013. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED  this the _____ day of ___________, 2013. 

 
 
                     _____________________________ 
                     Dane Haygood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

121



PAGE 1 OF 8 

MOT ORDINANCE 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013 -53 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 2010 -46 

AND TO ESTABLISH PENALTIES AND ENFORCEMENT  

PROCEDURES FOR VIOLATION OF MUNICIPAL ORDINANCES  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama desires to promote the 

health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Daphne, Alabama; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of Daphne, Alabama passed Ordinance Number 2005-55 

setting forth a schedule of fines for certain offenses which may be paid without the necessity of 

appearing before the Municipal Court of Daphne, Alabama, and that such a need still exists for 

the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said schedule of fines necessitates the inclusion of the offense of speeding 

in a school zone; and 

 

 WHEREAS, prior ordinances so establishing said schedule of offenses have been 

amended from time to time and ordinance numbers subject to the schedule of fines have changed 

through amendments and repeals to such an extent that a reorganization of this Ordinance is 

called for in order to remove confusion in the citation of ordinance numbers; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, desires to establish a new 

Ordinance setting forth the ordinances subject to fines payable without mandatory court 

appearance; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION I:  PENALTY AND ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES 

 

 (a) Except as otherwise provided by separate ordinance, any person, firm or 

corporation committing an offense within the corporate limits of the City or within the police 

jurisdiction thereof which is in violation of an ordinance of the City now existing or hereafter 

122



PAGE 2 OF 8 

MOT ORDINANCE 

 

enacted shall, upon conviction, be punishable by a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars 

($500.00). 

 

 (b) In addition thereto, any person so convicted may be imprisoned or sentenced to 

hard labor for the City for a period not exceeding six (6) months, at the discretion of the Court 

 

 c) Except where otherwise provided, every day any violation of such code or any 

other ordinance of the City or such rule, regulation or Order shall continue shall constitute a 

separate offense. 

 

 SECTION II:  VIOLATIONS SUBJECT TO MUNICIPAL OFFENSE TICKET 

 

 (a) Violations of the municipal ordinances of the City, as amended from time to time, 

shall be punished by the issuance of a municipal offense ticket as set out further herein. 

 

SECTION III:  ADOPTION OF APPENDIX “A” AS THE SCHEDULE OF FINES 

FOR CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 (a) The City of Daphne hereby adopts and incorporates, in whole, the schedule of 

fines attached hereto as Appendix “A” and the same shall apply in municipal ordinance violation 

cases or cases charging the violation of a rule or regulation promulgated by a state agency or 

department and incorporated by municipal ordinance. 

 

(b) In addition to the fines so established, the defendant shall pay, in addition to such 

fine amount, any court costs as set forth on Appendix “A”.  If the defendant elects to plead guilty 

before a magistrate to a violation of any of the listed municipal laws for which there is a fine set 

forth in this Section, the fine plus the applicable court costs shall apply in such case.  In lieu of 

appearing before a magistrate, the defendant may sign a guilty plea and waiver of trial provision 

on the municipal offense ticket, and deliver the amount of the fine plus applicable court costs to 

the Clerk of the Municipal Court or mail such amount to the Clerk of the Municipal Court at 

1502 Highway 98, Daphne, Alabama, 36526.  In the event the defendant elects to be tried by the 

Municipal Court, then the defendant shall be subject to such fine and punishment as expressed in 

Section I of this Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION IV:  PROCEDURE FOR ISSUANCE OF MUNICIPAL OFFENSE  

      TICKET AND DISPOSITION OF CHARGE 

 

 a) When any officer, inspector, investigator, auditor or other employee of the City, 

designated by the City code, ordinance or appointment by the Mayor, as an enforcement officer 

123



PAGE 3 OF 8 

MOT ORDINANCE 

 

finds any violation or violations of the provision of the municipal law which he is authorized and 

required to enforce, the City employee may issue, on forms provided by the City, a municipal 

offense ticket and deliver to the person, firm, or corporation in violation of such municipal law. 

 

 The municipal offense ticket shall direct the person or a representative of the firm or 

corporation, whichever the case may be, to appear in the Municipal Court of the City at a time 

and on a date stated therein to answer the charge or charges for violating such municipal law, 

which violation shall be stated in the municipal offense ticket.  However, in the alternative, if the 

violation is the first violation of such municipal law by the person, firm, or corporation cited, or 

if Section III provides a scheduled fine for a second or third offense, then such person, firm, or 

corporation, may, in lieu of appearing in the Municipal Court pursuant to the municipal offense 

ticket, pay the appropriate fine and court costs pursuant to the terms stated in Section III and on 

the municipal offense ticket, in addition to either of the following: 

 

(1) Appearing in person before a magistrate, signing the plea of guilty and 

waiver of trial provision on the ticket or on a form provided by the Magistrate and 

paying the fine and court costs, provided that the Magistrate retains a copy of the 

ticket or such other form; or 

 

(2) Signing the guilty plea and waiver of trial provisions on the ticket and 

mailing the ticket in the amount of the fine and court costs to the Clerk of the 

Court.  Remittance by mail of the fine and costs constitutes a guilty plea and 

waiver of trial, whether or not the guilty plea and waiver of trial provisions on the 

ticket are signed by the defendant. Should the amount tendered be insufficient, 

such money received by the Magistrate or Clerk shall be considered to be a partial 

payment of the lawful penalty, applied by the Clerk to the fines and costs, and 

disbursed as required by law. The Clerk may give notice of such insufficiency, 

and a supplemental summons or warrant of arrest shall be issued for the offender's 

arrest, and judgment shall be entered by the Magistrate of Court for the balance of 

the penalty due. 

 

 (b) If any person, firm or corporation, so cited shall fail to appear in the Municipal 

Court of the City at the time and place stated in any municipal offense ticket duly issued or fails 

to pay the appropriate fine set forth on the municipal offense ticket as set forth herein, the 

officer, inspector, investigator, auditor or other employee of the City issuing such citation is 

hereby authorized and directed to swear out a warrant or execute an affidavit or complaint 

charging such person, firm or corporation with a violation of the municipal law or laws, listed on 

such municipal offense ticket. 

 

124



PAGE 4 OF 8 

MOT ORDINANCE 

 

 (c) The officers, inspectors, investigators, auditors, or other employees of the City, 

designated by law as enforcement officers and authorized to issue the municipal offense tickets 

as herein provided, are hereby further authorized to swear out warrants or execute affidavits or 

complaints charging such person(s), firm, or corporation within a violation of municipal law 

without having first issued a municipal offense ticket for such violation. 

 

 SECTION V:  PENALTIES FOR SUBSEQUENT OFFENSES, FAILURE TO  

    APPEAR, ETC. 

 

 (a) Any person, firm or corporation, receiving a subsequent (second, third or more) 

municipal offense ticket for violation of a municipal law or laws for which there is no scheduled 

fine for subsequent (second, third or more) offense, and anyone failing to appear in Municipal 

court, or otherwise failing to settle the matter by payment of the applicable fine and court cost 

prior to the date stated on the municipal offense ticket shall be punished as provided in Section I 

of this Ordinance, or by community service for a period not exceeding six (6) months, or by both 

such fine and imprisonment and/or community service, at the discretion of the judge, unless 

otherwise prohibited by state law. 

 

 (b) For purposes of this section, the term subsequent (second, third, or more) offense 

shall mean the committing of an offense involving the same offense for which the defendant has 

been previously issued a municipal offense ticket within three (3) years of the earlier offense. 

 

 SECTION VI:  REPEALER 

 

 Ordinance No. 2010-46 and the Schedule of Fines established by the same are hereby 

repealed in their entirety. 

 

SECTION VII:  SEVERABILITY 

 

 The provisions of the Ordinance shall supersede any conflict provisions of any other 

ordinances or resolutions previously adopted which pertain to the establishment of fines and 

penalties for violations of a job classification and pay plan.  Should any provision of this 

Ordinance be declared invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 

remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding such invalidity. 

 

 SECTION VIII:  EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by the City Council of 

the City of Daphne, and publication as required by law. 

125



PAGE 5 OF 8 

MOT ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, ON THIS THE       DAY OF                           , 2013. 

 

 

          

 

       ___________________________________ 

       DANE HAYGOOD, 

       MAYOR 

        

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

CITY CLERK 

126



PAGE 6 OF 8 

MOT ORDINANCE 

 

Appendix “A” 

Updated September 2013     

OFFENSE FINE Cost Total  

Driving on Wrong Side of Road $30.00 $166.50 $196.50 

Failure to Dim headlights $10.00 $166.50 $176.50 

Failure to Stop at Railroad Crossing $10.00 $166.50 $176.50 

Failure to Use Child Restraint $25.00 $166.50 $191.50 

Failure to Wear Safety Belt $41.00 $0.00 $41.00 

Failure to Yield Right-of-Way $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Following too Closely $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Improper Backing $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Improper Brakes $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Improper Lights $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Improper Muffler $10.00 $166.50 $176.50 

Improper or No Rearview Mirror $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Improper Passing $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Improper Signal $10.00 $166.50 $176.50 

Expired Tag $25.00 $166.50 $191.50 

Improper Tires $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Improper Turn $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Improper Window Tinting $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

No Helmet (Motorcycle Rider) $10.00 $166.50 $176.50 

Operating Motor Vehicle W/O a D.L. * $25.00 $216.50 $241.50 

Running Red Light $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Running Stop Sign $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Speeding 

<25 MPH over Posted Speed Limit 

25 or > 25 over Posted Speed Limit 

$20.00 

$40.00 

$166.50 $186.50 

$206.50 

Speeding in a Construction Zone: 

<25 MPH over Posted Speed Limit 

25 or > 25 over Posted Speed Limit 

$20.00 

$40.00 

$166.50 $186.50 

$206.50 

Speeding in a Construction Zone: 

<25 MPH over Posted Speed Limit 

25 or > 25 over Posted Speed Limit 

 

$40.00 

$80.00 

 

$166.5 
WORKERS PRESENT 

 

$206.50 

$246.50 

Speeding in a School Zone Mandatory Court Appearance 

Speed - exceeding reasonable and prudent $20.00 Costs  

Stopping on Highway $30.00 $166.50 $196.50 

Violating D. L. Restriction or Endorsement * $10.00 $216.50 $226.50 

Allowing a Child Under the Age of 16 to     

   Operate a Vehicle $50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

Shifting Load $25.00 $166.50 $191.50 

Spilling Load $25.00 $166.50 $191.50 

No Red or Orange Flag or Red Light or Amber 

Strobe 
$20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

127



PAGE 7 OF 8 

MOT ORDINANCE 

 

Unattended Motor Vehicle $25.00 $166.50 $191.50 

Driving upon Sidewalk $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Obstructing Driver's View $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Coasting $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Following Emergency Vehicle $50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

Crossing  a Fire Hose $50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

Littering Highway $100.00 $166.50 $266.50 

Improper Use of Clearly Indicated Divided Highway $30.00 $166.50 $196.50 

Failure to Yield to Emergency Vehicle $50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

Improper Stopping or Parking on or in     

   Highway (General) $30.00 $166.50 $196.50 

Improper Stopping, Standing, or Parking     

   Outside of Business or Residence $30.00 $166.50 $196.50 

Improper Stopping, Standing, or Parking     

   in Specified Places $30.00 $166.50 $196.50 

Blocking Highway $30.00 $166.50 $196.50 

Parking More Than 18 Inches from Curb $30.00 $166.50 $196.50 

Hitchhiking $10.00 $166.50 $176.50 

Improper Tag Classification $25.00 $166.50 $191.50 

Switched Personalized License Plates $100.00 $166.50 $266.50 

Overweight/Overheight/Overlength Truck $100.00 $166.50 $266.50 

No Permit (Oversized Width, Height,     

   Length) $100.00 $166.50 $266.50 

Refusal to weigh $300.00 $166.50 $466.50 

Casting a Light from a Road 

   (Nuisance Spotlighting) 

    

$100.00 $166.50 $266.50 

Expired License  $20.00 $216.50 $236.50 

Failure to move over or reduce speed when $25.00 $166.50 $191.50 

    approaching enforcement or emergency     

    vehicle.     

Improper Lane Change $20.00 $166.50 $186.50 

Improper Lane Usage $20.00                   $166.50 $186.50 

Insurance** - allowing the operation of a vehicle 
$50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

    without insurance - 1st offense only-  

    current proof of insurance required     

Insurance** - display of invalid insurance -  $50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

    1st offense only - proof of valid insurance     

    required.     

Insurance** - failure or refusal to display -  $50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

     1st offense only - proof of valid insurance     

     required     

Insurance** - operating a vehicle the registration $50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

      of which is suspended - 1st offense only-     

      proof of valid insurance and registration     

      required.     

Insurance** - operating a vehicle without insurance $50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

      1st offense only - proof of valid insurance     

128



PAGE 8 OF 8 

MOT ORDINANCE 

 

      required.     

No plainly visible tag $50.00 $166.50 $216.50 

Careless Driving *** $150.00 $114.50 $264.50 

      

Fire lanes  $25.00 $114.50 $139.50 

No Parking/May day $25.00 $148.00 $173.00 

Parked Near Fireplug $25.00 $114.50 $139.50 

Parked Near Intersection $10.00 $114.50 $124.50 

Parked Vehicle for Sale $25.00 $114.50 $139.50 

Parking Handicapped $100.00 $114.50 $214.50 

Parking in Median $10.00 $114.50 $124.50 

Parking No Parking Area $10.00 $114.50 $124.50 

Parking Tow Away Zone $25.00 $114.50 $139.50 

Soliciting W/O Permit $200.00 $148.00 $348.00 

Viol. Noise Ordinance  1St. $50.00 $148.00 $198.00 

Viol. Noise Ordinance  2Nd. $100.00 $148.00 $248.00 

Viol. Noise Ordinance  3Rd. $200.00 $148.00 $348.00 

      

*Includes $50.00 Fee for Driver's License Penalty    

**Subsequent violation requires mandatory court appearance.    

*** To be issued on UTC only       

 

 

129



 

Page 1 of 3 
ORDINANCE 2013-54                     ESTABLISHING PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT USE POLICY 

ORDINANCE 2013-54 

 

Repealing Ordinance 2013-02 and Establishing Public Works Equipment Use 

Policy 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne recognize the importance of 

promoting the health and welfare of its citizens; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City of Daphne, through the Department of Public Works, 

to support the sporting events, festivals, fundraisers, parades, and all other special events of the 

Municipalities, Schools, Charities, and Civic Groups of Baldwin County; and 

 

WHEREAS, other commercial and for-profit entities has needs for use of equipment maintained 

by Public Works; and 

 

WHEREAS, Public Works in the past has made available to these groups for their events 

barricades, tents, tables, chairs, water coolers, and ice; and 

 

WHEREAS, there is an expense associated with the purchase, maintenance, transportation, and 

the wear and tear of these items. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA that in order to insure these materials are available and in 

good repair at all times, the following policy is established: 

 

 

SECTION I APPLICATION OF POLICY 

 

For all groups described above, except Schools (and associated entities) within Daphne 

attendance zones, this policy shall apply. 

 

SECTION II  NUMBER OF USE REQUEST  

 

a.) Each group described in paragraph two above will be afforded one equipment use 

request, for a singular event, per calendar year. 

 

b.) For each subsequent equipment use request the below rental fee schedule will apply on a 

unit basis. 

 

c.) For all groups described in paragraph three the below rental fee schedule will apply on a 

unit basis. 

 

 

 

SECTION III  REQUEST AND USE DETAILS 

 

a.) The request must be made in writing a minimum of 30 days prior to pick-up or delivery 

130



 

Page 2 of 3 
ORDINANCE 2013-54                     ESTABLISHING PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT USE POLICY 

 

b.) The request must indicate items, quantities, dates of pick-up/delivery and return 

 

c.) The request must include name of group, description of event, and contact person with 

full contact information 

 

d.) For events outside of the City of Daphne the requesting group will be responsible for 

transportation of requested equipment 

 

e.) Only Municipal/County vehicles may tow City barricade trailers. Nongovernmental 

groups shall pay the haul rate below 

 

f.) Equipment will be inspected upon return. Borrower will be responsible for cost of any 

damage 

 

g.) The Mayor, at his discretion, may waive any part of or all requirements of this policy. 

 

 

SECTION IV  RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE 

 

ITEM      PRICE PER UNIT 
 

Barricades $5.00 EA 

 

Barricade Trailers (150 capacity) $75.00 EA 

 

Tent (20x40)  $300.00 EA 

                     

Tent (10x10) $25.00 EA 

   

Table (6 & 8 Foot Folding) $5.00 EA 

 

Chairs (Metal Folding) $2.00 EA 

 

Trailer Haul Rate $0.75 /Mile 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION V:  REPEALER 

 

Ordinance No. 2013-02 is by the same is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

 

 

131



 

Page 3 of 3 
ORDINANCE 2013-54                     ESTABLISHING PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT USE POLICY 

SECTION VI  SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or 

part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of the Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, 

section, paragraph, sentence : and part thereof separately and independently of each other.  

SECTION VII:  EFFECTIVE DATE  

This Ordinance shall become effective and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval and adoption by the City Council of Daphne and publication as required by law.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this        day of    , 2013. 

 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Dane Haygood 

       Mayor 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

132



133



 
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO.  2013-55  

 

Zoning District Map 

Revision to the City of Daphne  

Land Use and Development Ordinance 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at their regular 

meeting held on July 25, 2013 favorably recommended to the City Council of the City of Daphne 

certain amendments to the Zoning District Map approved and adopted by the Daphne Land Use and 

Development Ordinance No. 2011-54 and amended by Ordinances No. 2011-73, 2012-19, 2012-54 

and 2013-11; and 

 

WHEREAS, said amendments are necessary due to various rezoning and annexation 

requests which have been approved since the adoption of Ordinance 2011-54 and Ordinances 2011-

73 and 2012-19 and 2012-54 and 2013-11; and 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed zoning map amendments has been provided to the 

public as required by law through publication and open display at the City  of Daphne Public Library 

and City Hall; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing regarding the proposed Zoning District Map amendments was 

held by the City Council on September 16, 2013; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

recommendation of the Planning Commission believe it in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne to amend said Zoning District Map as recommended; 

and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I: ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

 

The Zoning District Map referenced hereto as Exhibit AA@ shall be the official zoning map 

of the City of Daphne, Alabama and shall be further designated in Appendix H of Exhibit AA@ of the 

City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, as set forth in Ordinance No. 2011-54 and its 

amendments. 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER 

 

Ordinance No. 2011-54, Appendix H AExhibit A@, Ordinances No. 2011-73 and 2012-19,   

2012-54 and 2013-11 is hereby repealed and any Ordinance(s), parts of Ordinance(s) or 

Resolution(s) conflicting with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as they 

conflict. 

 

 

134



 
ORDINANCE 2013-55                     REVISION TO ZONING MAP                           PAGE   2 

 

 

 

SECTION III: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City of Daphne City Council and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THE            
 
DAY OF                      , 2013. 

 

 

                     

_____________________ 

DANE HAYGOOD,  

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES,  

INTERIM  CITY CLERK 

 

135



136



ORDINANCE 2013-56  
 

Lodging Tax Appropriation 
Bayfront Park Parking Lot Paving 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget on 
October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain Lodging Tax appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lodging Tax funds may be used for the purchase, development, and 
maintenance of waterfront property; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that paving of the Bayfront Parking Lot is needed for 
safety and maintenance purposes for events held at the Richard Scardamalia Pavilion and 
Bayfront Park area; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
that the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget is hereby amended to include an additional Lodging Tax 
appropriation in the amount of $26,000 for parking lot paving for the Bayfront Richard 
Scardamalia Pavilion Building and Bayfront Park area. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
         
 

                                                                       
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
           
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

137



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-57 

 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE KEEPING OF DOGS, CATS, DOMESTICATED 

ANIMALS, LIVESTOCK OR FOWL WITHIN THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA  

 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that consolidating  the 

existing animal control ordinances which are currently in effect is necessary to effectuate and 

implement more efficient means of  animal control within the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that this ordinance 

consolidating all existing animal control ordinances is in the interest of the public health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I. OFFICE OF ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER CREATED 

 

A. There is hereby recognized within the City of Daphne (the “City”), the previously 

established position of Animal Control Officer.  The Animal Control Officer shall be under 

the supervision, direction and control of the City of Daphne Police Department.  The Animal 

Control Officer shall be supervisor over the City of Daphne Animal Shelter and over all 

employees assigned to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter.  All enforcement officers assigned 

to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter shall hereafter be known as Animal Control Officers. 

 

B. It shall be unlawful for any person to knowingly or willingly oppose or resist any 

Animal Control Officer in executing or attempting to execute any lawful process or in the 

discharge of any regular duty, or in any way to interfere with, hinder or prevent any such 

officer from discharging his duty. 

 

SECTION II.  DEFINITIONS 

 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning 

respectively ascribed to them by this section unless taken specific exception to elsewhere in 

this ordinance. 

 

Animal. The term shall mean any nonhuman, animate being which is 

endowed with the power of voluntary motion to include, but not limited to: 

Mammals, i.e. dogs, cats, horses, hogs, cows, sheep, goats, rabbits, etc.; 

reptiles; birds; salamanders; toads; frogs; sharks; snakes; rays; bony fishes; 

and amphibians. 

 

Animal Shelter. The place designated or used as such by the City for the 

maintenance and operation of a pound. 

 

138



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 2 

 

Animal Control Officers. All enforcement officers assigned to the City of 

Daphne Animal Shelter. 

 

At large. Any animal which is off the property of its owner or person in 

charge and not carried by said person, kept in an effective closure or under 

control or restraint by such person by means of a leash in such a way as to 

prevent its free movement, and so as to prevent said animal from freely 

charging or attacking persons or animals. 

 

Bitten. Seized with teeth or jaws such that the skin of the person or thing 

seized has been nipped or gripped or has been wounded or pierced and there 

has been probable contact of saliva with the break or abrasion of the skin. 

 

Caged. Confinement in a container, which may include a vehicle but not its 

trunk, in such a way that the free movement of such animal is restrained and 

so as to prevent the animal caged from biting or attacking a person or animal. 

 

Cat. All members of the domestic feline family. 

 

City of Daphne Animal Shelter. The location designated or used as such by 

the City for a place of confinement of animals held pursuant to the authority 

of this Ordinance. 

 

Corral. Any uncovered, enclosed parcel of land where large animals are kept. 

 

Dog. All members of the domestic canine family. 

 

Dogs Presumed to be vicious.  Any dog which is known by the owner or 

person in charge to habitually chase moving vehicles or charge persons on the 

public streets and other public ways shall be presumed to be vicious, whether 

or not such dog has actually bitten or attacked a person or other animal. 

 

Domesticated Animal. Shall mean, but is not limited to rabbits, squirrels, 

raccoons, pot-bellied pigs or any other animal used as a pet. 

 

Fowl. Chicken, turkey, ducks, geese, guineas or other domestic fowl. 

 

Livestock. Horses, mules, donkeys, oxen, sheep, goats, cows, buffaloes and 

swine, or any one of them. 

 

Owner. means any person, firm, corporation, organization, or department 

having a right of property in the animal, or who keeps or harbors the animal, 

or who has it in his care, or acts as its custodian, or who permits the animal to 

remain on or about any premises occupied by him or her. 

139



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 3 

 

 

Person in Charge.  Any person who feeds a dog or cat not owned by him or 

her or who otherwise cares for the animal.  This definition shall not include 

individuals who perform humane acts for the health and safety of an animal 

on a one time or temporary basis. 

 

Vicious and Dangerous Animal.  

 

(1) Any dog with a known propensity, tendency or disposition to attack 

unprovoked, to cause injury to, or otherwise threaten the safety of 

human beings or domestic animals. 

 

(2) Any dog which because of its size, physical nature or vicious 

propensity is capable of inflicting serious physical harm or death to 

humans and which constitutes a danger to human life or property if it 

were not kept in the manner required by this chapter. 

 

(3) Any dog which, without provocation, attacks or bites or has attacked 

or bitten a human being or domestic animal.  

 

(4) Any dog owned or harbored primarily or in part for the purpose of 

dog fighting, or any dog trained for dog fighting.  

 

The terms “potentially dangerous” and “vicious” shall not apply to dogs used 

by law enforcement officials for legitimate law enforcement purposes, nor 

dogs used as certified guide dogs for the blind, hearing dogs for the deaf nor 

aid dogs for the handicapped nor shall it apply to licensed kennels, humane 

society shelters, animal control facilities, or veterinarians. 

 

SECTION III. LIVESTOCK & FOWL. 

 

A. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

1.  General Prohibition 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person to keep any livestock or fowl within the 

city limits of the City.   

 

2.  Exceptions 

 

a) All livestock or fowl within the city limits of the City, prior to 

adoption of Ordinance No. 2003-11, are hereby grand fathered.  Animal 

Control Officers shall have made full inventory of all livestock and fowl 

currently maintained within the city limits at the time of adoption of 

140



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 4 

 

Ordinance No. 2003-11.  It shall be unlawful to replace any livestock or fowl 

that is sold, traded, given away, lost, deceased or otherwise disposed of.  All 

livestock or fowl located upon any real property within the City at the time of 

adoption of Ordinance No. 2003-11 shall be removed therefrom upon the sell, 

lease, rent, conveyance or gift of said real property or upon the death of the 

owner of said livestock or fowl.  

 

b) This section shall not apply to those whose property is annexed in the 

future should those property owners maintain livestock or fowl upon the 

property prior to annexation.  

 

3.  Condition of Premises  

 

If the premises, exempted from this section as described in Section III, A (2), 

 where livestock or fowl are kept shall not be free from unsanitary droppings, 

refuse and odors, or shall be in such condition as to breed flies, the Animal 

Control Office shall notify the owner or person-in-charge of the animals or 

fowl to remove such matter or cure such condition within a reasonable time 

to be fixed by the Animal Control Officer and, if such objectionable 

conditions are not cured within such time as is specified, the Animal Control 

Officer shall issue a citation to the owner or person-in-charge. 

 

B. LIVESTOCK OR FOWL AT LARGE 

 

It shall be unlawful for any owner or person-in-charge to knowingly, voluntarily or 

willfully permit any livestock or fowl to be at large within the City. 

 

C. HORSE STABLE PERMIT 

 

1.  Any person, firm or corporation desiring to open, operate or be in charge of a 

horse stable within the City must obtain a yearly permit therefor.  The 

application for permit shall be maintained by the Animal Control Officer and 

will indicate the number and type of horses, the name, address and phone 

number of the owner or person-in-charge of each and the veterinarian contact 

number.  The cost of a stable permit will be one hundred fifty dollars 

($150.00) for a new permit and one hundred dollars ($100.00) for yearly 

renewal.   

 

2.  A consent petition must be signed by all neighbors within five hundred (500) 

feet of the exterior parameter of the real property line where the stable is 

located. The petition and application will then be forwarded to the Planning 

Commission along with plans reflecting, at a minimum, the boundaries of the 

proposed pasture area and the proposed stable area with square footage per 

animal indicated thereon.   

141



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 5 

 

 

 Commission will then make a recommendation to the City Council.  If 

approved and the stable becomes operational, Animal Control Officers will 

conduct an inspection of the facility to determine whether the condition of the 

premises is in compliance with Section I, A (3).  A stable exists where two or 

more horses are kept. 

 

3. This section does not apply to stables existing within the City prior to the 

adoption of Ordinance No. 2003-11 or to newly annexed properties where 

stables existed and were operated immediately prior to annexation.  

 

SECTION IV. OPTIONAL LICENSE 

 

A.  DOGS AND CATS 

 

The owner or person-in-charge of every dog or cat in the City which is more than 

three (3) months of age has the option to  annually register the same as to sex, breed, 

description, name and address of the owner or person-in-charge, and name of the dog 

or cat, if any.  There shall be no fee charged for such registration. 

 

SECTION V.  DOG, CAT OR DOMESTICATED ANIMAL AT LARGE 

 

A. GENERAL PROHIBITION 

 

No owner or person in charge of a dog, cat or domesticated animal shall permit the 

dog, cat or domesticated animal to be at large at any time within the City.  

 

B.  OWNER LIABILITY 

 

If the owner of any dog, cat or domesticated animal carelessly manages said dog, cat 

or domesticated animal or  permits said animal to be at large, and another person, 

without fault suffers damage thereby, such owner shall be liable for damages. 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION VI.  SEIZURE OF DOGS, CATS OR DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

AT LARGE 

 

A.  POLICE OFFICER’S DUTY TO NOTIFY ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER OF 

DOGS OR CATS AT LARGE; PROCEDURE FOR SEIZURE OF DOGS OR CATS 

AT LARGE 

 

142



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 6 

 

It shall be the duty of every police officer in the City, upon discovering a dog, cat or 

domesticated animal at large within the City, to promptly notify the Animal Control 

Officer.  It shall be the duty of the Animal Control Officer when so notified, or 

whenever the Animal Control Officer observes any dog, cat or domesticated animal 

at large, to immediately seize the dog, cat or domesticated animal and confine the 

animal to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter and if said dog or cat is licensed by the 

City, to make a reasonable effort to notify the owner.  Any dog, cat or domesticated 

animal found unlawfully to be at large within the City is hereby declared a nuisance 

and shall be seized and confined by the Animal Control Officer, and cared for in a 

humane manner for a period of not less than ten (10) days. 

 

B. RETURN OF DOGS, CATS OR DOMESTICATED ANIMALS TO OWNER 

PERMITTED 

 

In addition to, or in lieu of, confining a dog, cat or domesticated animal found 

unlawfully at large when the owner or person-in-charge of said dog, cat or 

domesticated animal is known to the Animal Control Officer, the Animal Control 

Officer may return the dog, cat or domesticated animal to the owner or person in 

charge and issue a citation for violation of this Ordinance. 

 

C.  NOTICE TO OWNER OF CONFINEMENT OF DOGS, CATS OR 

DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

 

Immediately upon confinement of a dog, cat or domesticated animal, the Animal 

Control Officer shall make reasonable effort to ascertain the identity of and notify the 

owner or person-in-charge of such dog, cats or domesticated animal of their 

confinement and of the conditions under which they may regain possession of such 

animal. 

 

SECTION VII. NOISY ANIMALS 

 

A.  RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD PROHIBITION AGAINST KEEPING OF 

NOISY ANIMALS 

 

It shall be unlawful and a nuisance for any person to keep on a residential lot or 

premises any animal or group of animals known to said person to habitually, 

continuously or intermittently to make or emit sounds or noises of such volume and 

nature as unreasonably to interfere with or disturb the peace, quiet, comfort and 

repose of persons of ordinary sensibilities within the neighborhood in the reasonable 

use and enjoyment of adjacent property. 

 

B.  OTHER AREAS PROHIBITION AGAINST KEEPING OF NOISY ANIMALS 

 

It shall be unlawful and a nuisance for any person to keep, on any tract, lot or 

143



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 7 

 

premises within the City, any animal or group of animals under such circumstances 

that the sounds or noises emitted by said animals are of such volume and nature as 

unreasonably to interfere with or disturb the peace, quiet, comfort and repose of 

persons of ordinary sensibilities in the reasonable use and enjoyment of any adjacent 

property used for residential purposes.  

 

C.  ABATEMENT OF NOISE; ENFORCEMENT 

 

1. Any owner or person-in-charge violating this section shall be guilty of 

maintaining a nuisance.  However, that no prosecution shall be commenced 

and no arrest made pursuant to this section, except upon affidavit made 

before, and warrant issued by a Magistrate.   

 

2. Any Police Officer or Animal Control Officer may take steps immediately to 

cure the situation to cause the noise to be abated, either through issuance of a 

citation, or impounding the animal if the owner, agent or person-in-charge 

cannot be found at the time of the disturbance. 

 

SECTION VIII.  RIGHT OF ENTRY ONTO LAND 

 

The Animal Control Officer shall have the right and duty and to enter upon any 

property, except inside a private dwelling house, for the purpose of capturing any 

dog, cat or domesticated animal at large, in compliance with the provisions of this 

Ordinance. 

 

SECTION IX. PROCEDURE FOR REDEMPTION 

 

The owner of any impounded dog, cat or domesticated animal may, within seven (7) 

days after the dog, cat or domesticated animal is impounded, redeem the dog or cat or 

domesticated animal by paying to the City the sum of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for 

impounding and four dollars ($4.00) per day for the care of said dog, cat or 

domesticated animal; but if said dog or cat is not currently licensed by the City, the 

owner must also secure a City license after exhibiting evidence that the dog or cat has 

been inoculated against rabies. 

 

SECTION X.   DISPOSITION OF UNREDEEMED DOGS, CATS OR 

DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

 

A.  ADOPTION OR HUMANE DESTRUCTION 

 

In the event any impounded dog, cat or domesticated animal is not redeemed within 

ten (10) days after the same is impounded and the dog, cat or domesticated animal 

does not bear a current City license, or if after ten (10) days from the time  notice has 

been made to the owner of dog, cat or domesticated animal which has been picked up 

144



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 8 

 

but bears a current City license, the Animal Control Officer may, at such Officer’s 

discretion, place said dog, cat or domesticated animal in a home or turn the dog, cat 

or domesticated animal over to the Daphne Animal Shelter  for adoption, or the 

Animal Control Officer, at such officer’s discretion, may destroy said dog, cat or 

domesticated animal by lethal injection prior to the expiration of the ten (10) days if 

the animal is injured or ill. 

 

B.  HUMANE DESTRUCTION OF NUISANCE ANIMALS 

 

After a dog, cat or domesticated animal has been confined for the period of time as 

otherwise provided in this Ordinance and if the owner or person in charge entitled to 

possession fails to make application for release of such dog, cat or domesticated 

animal as herein provided, or fails to pay the fine(s) as provided in this Ordinance or 

fails to pay the proper inoculation for rabies, or if such satisfactory evidence as 

required by Ordinance is not provided, then such dog, cat or domesticated animal is 

hereby declared a nuisance and a danger to the health, safety and welfare of the City; 

and the authorized Animal Control Officer shall cause such dog, cat or domesticated 

animal to be humanely destroyed as herein provided; however, any dog, cat or 

domesticated animal under two (2) weeks old or whose eyes have not opened since 

birth may be humanely disposed of upon being impounded where it has been found in 

violation of this Ordinance. 

 

C.  AUTHORITY TO USE FIREARM 

 

Any Animal Control Officer may be authorized by the Chief of Police to carry a 

firearm for the purpose of assisting in impounding any dog, cat or domesticated 

animal shall have the authority to shoot and kill such dog, cat or domesticated animal 

if, in attempting to capture the same or in otherwise keeping the same, it shall 

become an immediate hazard to the safety of the person or to the safety of persons or 

animals in the immediate vicinity. 

 

D.  HUMANE DESTRUCTION OF DISEASED ANIMALS - ACTS OF MERCY 

 

Any confined dog, cat or domesticated animal that is injured or diseased, shall, as an 

act of mercy, be humanely destroyed immediately after inspection by a veterinarian, 

or by the Animal Control Officer if it is determined that such destruction is necessary 

to prevent unnecessary suffering, to prevent the spread of disease or because the 

animal is incurable.   A written agreement to this effect shall be signed by those 

inspecting the animal and such agreement shall be retained by Animal Control for a 

period of one (1) year. 

 

E.  MANNER OF DISPOSAL 

 

The Animal Control Officer, when required to dispose of dogs, cats or domesticated 

145



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 9 

 

animals, shall do so by such process as is recognized by veterinary science as being a 

humane manner in which to destroy dogs, cats and domesticated animals. 

 

F.  DISPOSAL OF NON-DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

 

Non-domesticated animals may be destroyed by the Animal control Officer or by 

their direction, for public safety to prevent the spread of disease and acts of mercy.  

Such authority shall come from the Chief of Police for animal control personnel to 

carry out the provisions of this order. 

 

G.  REQUIRED STERILIZATION 

 

Any person who adopts a sexually mature dog or cat, at least 180 days in age, is 

required by state law to have the animal properly sterilized. Therefore, for all animals 

adopted through the Daphne Animal Shelter, the following fees will be collected by 

the Daphne Animal Shelter prior to the adoption of any dog or cat that is not 

sterilized and which is not privately owned: 

 

For an unsterilized dog: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $85.00 

For an unsterilized cat: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .$55.00 

 

These fees will be deposited with the Baldwin Animal Rescue Center which has 

agreed to be responsible for the voluntary transport of the required documentation, 

the payment, and the animal to a licensed veterinarian, the name and location of 

which shall be given to the adopting party for the retrieval of the animal after 

sterilization.  The adopting party may, at their election, transport the animal to a 

specified veterinarian, but in any case, the payment and documentation will be 

delivered to that veterinarian by the Baldwin Animal Rescue Center.  Follow-up will 

be conducted by the Baldwin Animal Rescue Center to determine that the adopting 

party has complied with the sterilization law.  Should it be determined that an 

adopting party has not complied with the law, which is a misdemeanor offense, 

referral will then be made by the Baldwin Animal Rescue Center to the proper 

authorities for enforcement. 

 

This section does not apply to private persons who have evidence of ownership of an 

animal taken into custody of the Daphne Animal Shelter. 

 

SECTION XI.   RABIES VACCINATION REQUIRED - PENALTY 

 

A.  RABIES VACCINATION REQUIRED 

 

It shall be unlawful for any owner or person in charge of any premises where dog or 

cat is kept to keep any dog or cat more than three (3) months of age, thereon, which 

has not been vaccinated against rabies within the preceding twelve (12) months. 

146



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 10 

 

 

B.  PENALTY 

 

Any owner or person in charge in violation hereof shall be subject to a penalty not to 

exceed an amount equal to twice the State approved charge for inoculation, to be 

imposed by the Animal Control officer or his authorized representative, in addition to 

the fee prescribed for the inoculation. 

 

C.  LICENSED VETERINARIAN 

 

In order to be sufficient under this Ordinance, the vaccination of any dog or cat shall 

be accomplished by a licensed veterinarian. 

 

D.  TAG ATTACHMENT MANDATORY 

 

The serially numbered rabies tag issued at the time of inoculation shall at all times be 

attached to a collar or harness worn by the dog or cat for which the tag is issued.  It 

shall be unlawful for any owner or person in charge of any dog or cat not to keep 

attached to said dog or cat the tag evidencing the anti-rabies vaccine or inoculation as 

provided in this Ordinance.  However, said tag need not be attached during 

supervised obedience training classes or animal shows. 

 

E.   ANIMAL BITE 

 

1. Whenever the Daphne Police Department or an Animal Control Officer 

receives information that any person has been bitten by an animal required to 

be inoculated against rabies, the animal will be placed in quarantine with a 

duly licensed veterinarian for observation of rabies for ten (10) consecutive 

days.  The owner or person-in-charge shall be responsible for ensuring the 

quarantine is carried out immediately and at the owner or person-in-charge’s 

expense. A police report will be completed documenting the incident and 

confirmation of quarantine.  It shall be unlawful for any person having 

knowledge that any person has been bitten by any such animal to refuse to 

notify promptly the Daphne Police Department or an Animal Control Officer. 

 

2. It shall be unlawful for an owner or person-in-charge to refuse or fail to 

quarantine an animal. 

 

3. Where biting occurs by a stray animal, the Animal Control Officer may 

humanely destroy the animal immediately after the bite and submit the 

Animal's head to the state health laboratory for rabies examination. 

 

4. K-9 animals used by law enforcement shall be exempted from the quarantine 

period where such bite occurs in the line of duty and evidence of proper 

147



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 11 

 

vaccination against rabies, but shall be examined at the end of ten (10) days 

by a duly licensed veterinarian. 

 

SECTION XII.   VACCINATION PERIOD 

 

The vaccination of any dog or cat against rabies shall be valid for a period of one (1) year. 

 

SECTION XIII.   CONFINEMENT OF DOGS OR CATS IN HEAT 

 

A. Every female dog or cat in heat shall be kept confined by the owner or person-in-

charge.  At any time a female dog or cat in heat is found to be causing a disturbance 

of any dog or cat on adjoining premises, it shall be the duty of the owner or person-

in-charge of said dog or cat to immediately confine said dog or cat in a manner so as 

to avoid such disturbance. 

 

SECTION XIV.  DUTY TO RESTRAIN 

 

A.  DOGS AND DOMESTICATED ANIMALS 

 

It shall be the duty of every owner or person in charge of any dog or domesticated 

animal (excluding cats) to keep said animal under effective restraint, while the same 

is within the limits of the City, whether or not said dog or domesticated animal 

(excluding cats) is upon or away from his or her premises.  It shall be unlawful for 

the owner or person in charge of any dog or domesticated animal (excluding cats) to 

fail to keep said animal under effective restraint.  Proof that a dog or domesticated 

animal (excluding cats) was not properly restrained, whether on or off the premises of 

the owner or person in charge, shall be prima facie evidence of a violation.  Negligent 

failure to provide or maintain effective restraint shall not be a defense; however, 

competent evidence that said failure was occasioned by an unforeseeable and 

independent act of a third person shall shift the burden on the City to prove 

otherwise. 

 

B.  DOGS, CATS AND DOMESTICATED ANIMALS / DESTRUCTION-DAMAGE 

TO PROPERTY 

 

It shall be unlawful for the owner or person-in-charge of any dog, cat or domesticated 

animal within the City known to said person to habitually cause destruction or 

damage to the property of another to allow said dog, cat or domestic animal to run at 

large.  

 

C.  DEFECATION ON ANOTHER’S PROPERTY 

 

No owner or person-in-charge of any dog, cat or domesticated animal shall permit 

such animal to defecate on another person’s property.  Such owner or person-in-

148



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 12 

 

charge shall, while walking such animal, utilize a restraint device to prevent the 

animal from defecating on other person’s property.  It shall be the duty of the owner 

or person-in-charge to remove and dispose of any feces deposited by said animal 

upon the grounds of any public park or public place, upon any residential lot of 

another occupied for human habitation, or upon any right-of-way adjacent thereto.  

Such removal and disposal shall be done on demand by the owner or occupant of 

such property or by the Animal Control Officer. 

 

D.  CONDITION OF PREMISES 

 

1. The premises where any dog, cat or domesticated animal is kept shall be free 

from unsanitary droppings, refuse and odors, or in a condition to breed flies 

or infestation of fleas.  Unsanitary or inhumane living conditions for these 

animals will not be allowed.  The Animal Control Officer shall notify the 

owner or person-in-charge of the premises to remove such matter or cure 

such condition within a reasonable time, to be fixed by the Animal Control 

Officer.  If such condition is not remedied within the time so fixed, the 

Animal Control Officer shall issue a citation to the owner or person-in-

charge.  Animals found in cruel, abusive or neglectful situations may be 

promptly impounded if the life or health of the animal is at risk.  If no contact 

is immediately made with the owner, then a written notice shall be left 

indicating the location of the animal and the reason for impoundment.  The 

animal may remain impounded until the condition has been corrected. 

 

2. An owner or person-in-charge of any dog, cat or domesticated animal shall 

provide adequate shelter from the elements if the animal is kept outside.  

Adequate food and water shall be made available to the animal.  Dogs shall 

not be kept or maintained on a chain or tether in the City. Any dog confined 

with a fenced in yard must have adequate space for exercise based on the 

dimensions of at least 150 square feet per dog.  Such enclosure shall be 

constructed of chain link or wooden fencing or a similar type material with all 

four sides enclosed.  The enclosure shall be of sufficient height to prevent the 

animal from escaping from such enclosure and shall meet the requirements of 

the Alabama Animal Rights Protection Act, Section 13A-11-24(1).  At no 

point in time may an animal be tied or leased to an inanimate object, i.e., tree, 

post, etc. 

 

 As an alternative, the owner may use underground invisible fencing to meet 

the requirements of this section in lieu of a chain link or wooden  fence.  The 

invisible fencing must be able to properly and humanely restrain the dog on 

the property.  A dog at large is prima facie evidence that the invisible fence 

did not properly restrain the animal.  During power outages, etc., the owner 

must take other proper measures such as bringing the animal inside to prevent 

the animal from being at large during power outages.   

149



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 13 

 

 

3. No dog, cat or domesticated animal shall be restrained with a restraining 

device less than six (6) feet long unless walking or training such animal. 

 

4. No dog, cat or domesticated animal shall be placed, confined or allowed to be 

placed or confined in a motor vehicle under such conditions or for such a 

period of time as to endanger the health or welfare of the animal because of 

temperature, lack of food or water, or such other conditions as may 

reasonably be expected to cause suffering, disability or death. 

 

E.  RIGHT OF ENTRY TO INSPECT 

 

The Animal Control Officer shall have the right and it shall be the Officer’s duty to 

enter upon any property, except a private dwelling house, for the purpose of 

inspecting any living condition for an animal for which there is a reasonable 

suspicion to believe that there exists thereupon a violation of this Ordinance.  

 

SECTION XV.  STRAY DOGS, CATS OR DOMESTICATED ANIMALS MAY 

BE TAKEN UP 

 

Any person in the City finding any dog, cat or domesticated running at large about his 

premises or residence, or the residence of which he is in charge, may have such animal 

confined by the Animal Control Officer as an at large animal or stray. 

 

SECTION XVI.  HUMANE TRAPS 

 

A.  The Animal Control officer is hereby authorized, in order to apprehend animals in 

violation of this Ordinance which are otherwise difficult to apprehend, to use traps 

designed to humanely capture said animals by placing the same upon any public 

property of the City, upon the right of way of any public street or highway or upon 

the private property of any person granting permission therefor.  

 

B.   It shall be the duty of the Animal Control Officer to check such traps daily and 

remove captured animals therefrom to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter where they 

shall be disposed or treated as otherwise provided herein. 

 

C.  It shall be unlawful for any person to molest or tamper with any such trap, or to 

remove any animal captured in any such trap or to interfere with the Animal Control 

Officer in setting or servicing any such trap. 

 

D.  Any owner or person-in-charge of any premises within the City may set their own 

humane trap on such premises for the purpose of removing any animal, except 

songbirds, which has entered onto the premises. 

 

150



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 14 

 

E.  It shall be the duty of the owner or person-in-charge to check such trap daily and 

deliver any animal captured therein to the City of Daphne Animal Shelter or to the 

animal’s owner. 

 

F.  Any owner or person-in-charge of any dog, cat or domesticated animal captured in a 

humane trap which is off the premises of the owner or person-in-charge thereof shall 

be prima facie presumed to have allowed, suffered or permitted such animal to be or 

run at large.  At any time Dogs or cats are captured by use of such trap and the owner 

or person-in-charge is known or becomes known to the Animal Control Officer, such 

owner or person-in-charge shall be given a citation to appear in City Court as 

provided hereafter. 

 

SECTION XVII.  CRUELTY TO ANIMALS 

 

A.  Any person who commits any of the acts enumerated hereafter shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor: 

 

1.  any person who overrides, over-drives, overloads, drives when overloaded, 

tortures, torments, deprives of necessary sustenance, cruelly beats, mutilates, 

or cruelly kills or causes or procures to be overridden, over-driven, 

overloaded, driven when overloaded, tortured, tormented, deprived of 

necessary sustenance, cruelly beaten, mutilated, abandoned or cruelly killed; 

or  

 

2.  any person having the charge or custody of such animal, either as owner or 

otherwise, inflicts unnecessary cruelty upon same, or fails to provide the 

same with proper food, drink or protection from the weather, or cruelly drives 

or allows to be ridden or over-driven when unfit for labor; or  

 

3.  any person who, having the charge or custody of any animal known to him to 

require medical treatment or care in order to prevent unjustifiable physical 

pain, suffering or death, who having such knowledge fails to provide proper 

treatment and care, or in the alternative to cause said animal to be humanely 

disposed of; or 

 

4.  any person who unlawfully or maliciously kills, disables, disfigures, or 

injures any animal, without good cause. 

 

B.  EXCEPTION: 

 

This section shall not be construed as prohibiting the dehorning or castration of 

cattle, sheep or goats. 

 

SECTION XVIII.  ANIMALS SUSPECTED OF HAVING RABIES DECLARED 

151



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 15 

 

NUISANCES; IMPOUNDMENT OF SAME: 

 

Any animal suspected of infection with rabies is hereby declared to be a public nuisance and 

a danger to the health and safety of the community.  The Animal Control Officer may take up 

and confine any such animal. 

 

SECTION XIX.  CITATIONS 

 

When any animal is found by the Animal Control Officer to be in violation of any provision 

of this Ordinance, and the person or persons responsible become known to the Animal 

Control Officer, a citation may issue to the owner or person in charge for said violation 

directing the person to appear in Municipal Court at a time and date stated therein to answer 

to charges of violations of this Ordinance, which said charges shall be stated in said citation.  

It shall be unlawful and a misdemeanor for any person to fail to appear in City Court at the 

time and place stated in a citation issued by the Animal Control Officer. 

 

SECTION XX.  DISPOSITION OF FEES 

 

All monies collected, as provided for in this Ordinance, shall be turned over and delivered 

forthwith to the City Treasurer and all revenues generated through enforcement of any 

section of this Ordinance shall be appropriated by the City for use in supporting, maintaining 

and providing for the ongoing expense of operating the City of Daphne Animal Shelter and 

expenses and costs incurred in the enforcement of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XXI.  MINIMUM PENALTIES 

 

A.  PENALTY FOR VIOLATION - FINES: 

 

The following schedule of fines is hereby established by the City pursuant to this 

Ordinance and the laws of the State of Alabama.  In addition to the fines so 

established, the Defendant shall pay, in addition to such fine amount, any court costs 

which are in effect at the time of such violation occurs.  If the Defendant elects to 

plead guilty before a magistrate to a violation of any of the municipal offenses 

contained herein for which there is a fine set forth in this section, the fine plus 

applicable court cost shall apply.  In lieu of appearing before a magistrate, the 

Defendant may sign a guilty plea and waiver of trial provision on the municipal 

offense citation, and deliver the amount of the fine plus applicable court costs to the 

Clerk of the Municipal Court or mail such amount to the Clerk of the Municipal 

Court for the City of Daphne at 1502 Highway 98, Daphne, Alabama 36526.  

 

B.  SCHEDULE OF FINES: 

 

Any person found guilty of the provisions of this Ordinance as referenced herein, the 

minimum fines shall apply as follows: 

152



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 16 

 

INFRACTION   FINE  

 

Allowing dog to defecate   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

 another’s property   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

  

Animal restrained by leash  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

or restraining device less   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

than six (6) feet long   3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Cat at large/ destruction  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

damage to property   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

(no tag)    3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Cat at large/ destruction  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $10 

damage to property   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

(with tag)    3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Cruelty to animals   1
st
 offense      Court  

     2
nd

 offense       Court  

     3
rd

 offense        Court  

 

Dog at large (with tag)  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $10 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Dog at large (no tag)   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Failure to Restrain   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

 

Fowl at large    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

153



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 17 

 

Failure to quarantine   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period   Court 

animal that has bitten   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period   Court  

 

Failure to notify    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

authorities of bite   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court  

 

Failure to obtain rabies  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

vaccination    2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Failure to attach rabies tag  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Failure to surrender    1
st
 offense      Court 

Dangerous/Vicious animal  2
nd

 offense      Court 

 

Failure to confine dog/cat  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

in heat     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $100 

 

Keeping a Dangerous and   See Section XXIII 

Vicious animal    

 

Failure to provide adequate  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

shelter/ food and or water  2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

Interfering/ opposing   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

Animal Control Officer  2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court  

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Keeping prohibited   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

livestock in city limits   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Keeping prohibited    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

fowl in city limits   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

154



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 18 

 

 

Livestock at large   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $15 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

 

Noisy animals    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $100 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $250 

      3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  $500 & 

            Court 

 

Operating illegal horse  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

stable      2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Promoting animal fighting  1
st
 offense      Court 

     2
nd

 offense      Court 

 

Refusing to allow inspection  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

     2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court  

 

Tamper with animal trap/  1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

removing animal from   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court  

trap/interfering with ACO  3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

in setting/servicing trap 

 

Unsanitary living condition-   1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $25 

fowl/livestock    2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

     3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Unsanitary/inhumane    1
st
 offense within a twelve month period  $50 

living condition   2
nd

 offense within a twelve month period  $100 

(any animal)    3
rd

 offense within a twelve month period  Court 

 

Dangerous and vicious animal 1
st
 offense      Court 

at large     2
nd

 offense      Court 

     3
rd

 offense      Court 

 

C.  That in addition to any offense not referred to in this section, any person so convicted 

of any other section of this Ordinance, separately and/or separately shall be fined the 

sum of not less than Fifty ($50.00) Dollars or more than Five Hundred ($500.00) 

155



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 19 

 

Dollars, and/or incarceration in the Daphne Municipal Jail for a period not to exceed 

180 days or both, at the discretion of the Municipal Court Judge 

 

SECTION XXII. DONATIONS TO ANIMAL SHELTERS 

 

This section shall establish an additional procedure for donations to the City of Daphne 

Animal Shelter via online payment at the City of Daphne Animal Shelter website through 

generally accepted credit cards. 

 

SECTION XXIII. VICIOUS ANIMALS 

 

A.  HARBORING 

 

No person shall own or harbor any animal for the purpose of animal fighting, or train, 

torment, badger, bait or use any animal for the purpose of causing or encouraging 

said animal to attack human beings or domestic animals when not provoked. 

 

No person shall sell, offer for sale, breed, buy or attempt to buy any Vicious Animal 

within the City. 

 

B.  REGISTRATION OF VICIOUS ANIMALS 

 

The owner or person-in-charge of a Vicious Animal in the City shall annually register 

the same as to sex, breed, description, name and address of the owner or person-in-

charge, and name of the Vicious Animal, if any, pursuant to the provisions of Section 

IV. 

 

The owner or person in charge of a Vicious Animal shall at all times, keep the tag 

affixed to said animal.  It shall be unlawful for any owner or person in charge of a 

Vicious Animal to fail to comply fully with all of the requirements of this section by 

failing to register such animal.  It shall also be unlawful for any person, except the 

owner or person in charge and upon its own premises to remove a tag from a Vicious 

Animal tagged under the provisions of this section or to place a tag upon an animal 

for which said tag was not issued, to procure a tag from the City by fraud or 

misrepresentation, or to disfigure or alter the words or figures upon a tag. 

 

C. INSURANCE 

 

All owners or keepers of a vicious dog or dog presumed to be vicious, as previously 

defined or as shall be determined to be vicious after judicial review, shall provide 

proof of liability insurance in a single incident amount of at least $100,000.00, 

specifically covering any damage or injury which may result from the ownership, 

keeping or maintenance of such animal. 

 

156



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 20 

 

The policy shall contain a provision requiring the City to be named as an additional 

insured for the sole purpose of being notified by the insurer of any cancellation, 

termination or expiration of the liability insurance policy. 

 

D. INVESTIGATION OF VICIOUS DOGS 

 

When any person claims that an animal is vicious, he or she shall make a sworn 

statement setting forth the name of the animal’s owner, the location where the animal 

is being kept in the City, and the reason he or she believes the animal to be vicious. 

 

The sworn statement will be delivered to the Animal Control Officer who will 

complete a vicious animal investigation. 

 

Animal Control Officers are authorized to initiate a vicious animal investigation in 

cases where a bite or serious injury to any person has been reported or when the 

officer has other reason to believe a dog may be vicious. 

 

Police officers and/or animal control officers shall be permitted to enter the exterior 

property where a vicious animal or animal presumed to be vicious is located for the 

purpose of investigating the allegation of viciousness.  If the police officer and/or 

animal control officer has reason to believe an animal poses an immediate threat to 

the health, safety or welfare of the general public, the officer may seize the animal 

and impound the animal at the animal shelter pending completion of the investigation 

and hearing. 

 

If an animal control officer or a law enforcement officer has investigated and 

determined that there exists probable cause to believe that an animal is potentially 

dangerous or vicious, the animal control officer, the chief officer of the public pound 

or animal control department or his or her immediate supervisor or the head of the 

local law enforcement agency, or his or her designee, shall determine whether or not 

the animal in question should be declared potentially dangerous or vicious.  

 

Whenever possible, any complaint received from a member of the public which 

serves as the evidentiary basis for the animal control officer or law enforcement 

officer to find probable cause shall be sworn to and verified by the complainant and 

shall be attached to the petition. 

 

In the event the vicious animal investigation leads the Animal Control Officer to 

believe the allegation is unfounded, the Animal Control Officer shall advise the 

complainant of his findings and submit the results of the investigation to the 

Municipal Court and his animal control supervisor. 

 

E. NOTICE, COURT HEARING, AND APPEAL 

 

157



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 21 

 

1. The owner or keeper of the animal shall be served with notice of the hearing 

and a copy of the petition, either personally or by first-class mail with return 

receipt requested. The hearing shall be held no less than ten (10) days nor 

more than twenty (20) days after such notice is mailed to the owner or keeper 

of the animal and shall be open to the public. 

 

 2. At such hearing all interested persons shall have the opportunity to present 

evidence on the issue of the animal’s dangerousness. The court may admit all 

relevant evidence, including incident reports and the affidavits of witnesses, 

photographs and video tapes, limit the scope of discovery, and may shorten 

the time to produce records or witnesses. 

 

 In the event that the animal in question has caused injury to any person, the 

municipal judge may impound the animal, at the owner’s expense, pending 

the hearing and determination of the complaint. If the court finds that the 

animal is potentially dangerous or vicious, it may make any orders authorized 

by this chapter or other laws, including but not limited to assessment of fines 

and costs as provided in this Code. 

 

3. If a determination is made that the animal is potentially dangerous or vicious 

and no appeal is filed, the owner or keeper shall comply with the municipal 

court’s order no later than fourteen (14) days following the rendering of the 

decision. If the owner or keeper of the animal contests the determination, he 

or she may, within fourteen (14) days of the municipal court’s decision appeal 

the decision to the circuit court of the county. All filing fees and costs shall he 

paid by the owner or keeper of the animal. The owner or keeper of the animal 

shall serve notice upon the City that the appeal has been filed. 

 

 4. If an animal is found not to be vicious, the animal control authority shall still 

have the right, following due process, to later declare an animal to be vicious 

or to determine that the animal constitutes a threat to the public health and 

safety, for any subsequent actions of the animal. 

 

F.  REGULATION OF POTENTIALLY DANGEROUS OR VICIOUS ANIMALS 

 

If it is determined at the hearing that the animal is dangerous or vicious, the Court 

may order the following: 

 

1. Confinement: 

 

a) Owners shall provide an exterior perimeter fence suitable to contain 

an average animal of the same type.  The perimeter fence shall be 

constructed of chain link or wooden privacy type and shall be at least 

four (4) feet in height. 

158



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 22 

 

 

b) Owners shall provide an additional fence or pen of adequate size 

inside the perimeter fence to humanely confine the vicious animal. 

 

1) This additional fence or pen may not share common fencing 

with the perimeter fence. 

 

 2) This additional fence or pen must have secure sides and a 

secure top attached at all sides. 

 

3) All four sides of this additional fence or pen must be sunk at 

least two feet into the ground or the fence or pen must be built 

over a concrete pad to prevent the animal from digging out. 

 

4) The additional fence or pen must have an inward-opening 

gate and shall be kept locked at all times by pad lock or key 

lock except when tending to the care of the animal. 

 

5) The sides of this additional fence or pen shall be from ground 

to top at least twice the height of the animal, the height of the 

animal being measured from its shoulders. 

 

6) The additional fence or pen must not be positioned so that 

neighbors or passersby have access to the animal.  It must be 

no less than twenty (20) feet from any neighboring property 

line. 

 

7) Signs shall be posted on each side of this additional fence or 

pen stating that a vicious animal is enclosed and shall specify 

the type of animal enclosed, i.e. “Vicious Dog”.  Signs must 

be printed and legible from 20 feet. 

 

8) The pen or structure must also provide the animal with 

protection from the elements and must at all times be kept in 

sanitary condition. 

 

c) Whenever the animal is outside either the additional fence or pen 

provided for this section: 

 

1) It must be attended by the owner; 

 

2) It must be restrained by a secure collar and leash or rope to 

no longer than eight (8) feet and of sufficient strength to 

prevent escape; and 

159



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 23 

 

 

3) It must be securely muzzled so as to effectively prevent 

such animal from biting another animal or person. 

 

d) No vicious animal shall be allowed outside the owner’s property 

except in emergencies or for normal or necessary medical or health 

related treatment. 

 

  2. Destruction of a Vicious Dog 

 

In the event it is determined at the hearing that the release of the animal 

would create a significant threat to the public health, safety and welfare, the 

animal may be humanely destroyed by the Department of Animal Control. 

 

 

  3. When it is Determined that the Animal is not Dangerous or Vicious 

 

In the event it is determined at the hearing that the animal is not vicious, the 

court shall inform the complainant of said findings. 

 

G. MINOR OWNER OR KEEPER 

 

In the event that the owner or keeper of a potentially dangerous or vicious animal is a 

minor, the parent or guardian of such minor shall be liable for all injuries and 

property damage sustained by any person or domestic animal caused by an 

unprovoked attack by such potentially dangerous or vicious animal. 

 

H.  PROCEDURE UPON LOSS, SALE OR TRANSFER OF ANIMAL 

 

The owner or keeper of a potentially dangerous or vicious animal shall notify the 

department of animal control or the police department immediately if such potentially 

dangerous or vicious animal is loose or missing or if the potentially dangerous or 

vicious animal has attacked or wounded a human being or another animal. If the 

animal in question dies, or is sold, transferred, or permanently removed from the city 

or county where the owner or keeper resides, the owner of a potentially dangerous or 

vicious animal shall notify the animal control department of the changed condition 

and new location of the animal in writing within two (2) working days. If the owner 

or keeper of a potentially dangerous or vicious animal moves the animal to a different 

address within the city limits of the City, such owner or keeper shall notify the 

department of animal control of such fact and the new address within twenty-four 

(24) hours. 

 

I.  KEEPING POTENTIALLY DANGEROUS OR VICIOUS ANIMALS 

 

160



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 24 

 

It shall be unlawful for any owner, keeper or other person to be in violation of any 

provision of this chapter or any order of any court as provided in this chapter.  Any 

owner or keeper found to be in violation of this section shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor and shall be punishable as provided in Subsection J of this Section. 

 

J. PENALTY FOR VIOLATION 

 

 The penalty for violation of any provision of this section shall be as follows: 

 

1
st
 Offense     Not less than $100.00 or more than $350.00 

and/or not to exceed 6 months in jail; 

 

2
nd

 and Subsequent Offenses  Not less than $350.00 or more than $500.00 

and/or not to exceed six (6) months in jail. 

 

 

In addition, the Court shall assess the violator with any and all costs incurred for the 

impoundment and/or destruction of the dog.   

 

K.  CONFINEMENT GENERALLY 

 

No owner, keeper or harborer of an animal shall permit a vicious or dangerous dog to 

be kept on a chain, rope or other type of leash outside of its fence and/or pen unless it 

is under physical control of a leash.  Such dogs may not be leashed or chained to 

inanimate objects such as trees, posts, buildings, etc. outside of the perimeter fence 

and/or pen.  No vicious or dangerous dog may be kept on a porch, patio or in any 

other portion of the house or structure that would allow the dog to exit such building 

or structure on its own volition.  In addition, no such animal may be kept in a house 

or structure where screen doors are the only obstacle preventing the dog from exiting 

the structure.  

  L. REGISTRATION OF VICIOUS DOGS 

 

All dangerous or vicious dogs as defined herein or as found to be vicious after a 

Municipal Court hearing shall be registered on the City’s website.  Such registry shall 

include the address where the dog is located and identifying information on the dog, 

including two (2) identifying color photographs of the dog.  The registry shall not 

contain the name or names of the owners or tenants at said location.   

 

SECTION XXIV.  DONATIONS TO ANIMAL SHELTERS 

 

This section shall establish an additional procedure for donations to the City of Daphne 

Animal Shelter via online payment at the City of Daphne Animal Shelter website through 

generally accepted credit cards. 

161



ORDINANCE 2013-57 

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE 

PAGE 25 

 

 

SECTION XXV.  SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence or part thereof shall be held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not 

affect or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and 

enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence and part thereof separately and 

independently of each other. 

 

SECTION XXVI. REPEALER 

 

Ordinance Nos. 1998-33, 2001-02, 2003-11, 2007-27, 2010-56, 2010-67 and 2013-13 are 

hereby repealed in their entirety.  All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with 

the provision of this Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION XXVII. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF _____________ 2013. 

 

 

 CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 

 _________________________________ 

                                                DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________                                                                     

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

162


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes - September 16
	Council Minutes - SP September 23
	Council Strategic Plan Minutes - September 23
	Backup to Strategic Plan Minutes September 23 2013
	Proclamations - Fire Prevention - Breast Cancer Month
	T-Shirt Design Contest Winner - Breast Cancer Awareness
	Report of Standing Committees
	Report of Special Boards
	BZA Meeting and Submittal Calendar
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Planning Commission Meeting and Submittal Calendar
	Sign Committee Minutes 9-3, 9-10, 9-17
	Sign Committee Report to City Council
	Public Hearing SET DATE  Info 10-7-13
	Report of Officers
	Parade Permits
	ABC License - Uncorked Fine Wines
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2013-51 - RES - GOVDEALS COM               
	2013-52 - ORD - ATRIP - Initial Survey-Eng - LF Blvds Ph IV-N Main St
	2013-53 - ORD - MOT - Schedule of Fines (2)
	2013-54 -  ORD - Revised Public Works - Equipment Use Policy 8-21-2013
	Backup to 2013-54 - ORD -  Changes to 2013-02
	2013-55 - ORD - REVISIONS TO ZONING MAP 7-31-13
	Backup to 2013-55 - ORD
	2013-56 - ORD - Lodging Tax Fund-Bay Front Parking Lot Paving



